
 
City Commission Agenda

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, Great Falls, MT
Commission Chambers Room 206

May 15, 2018

CALL TO ORDER 7:00 P.M.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS

AGENDA APPROVAL

CONFLICT DISCLOSURE/ EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS

PROCLAMATIONS

Emergency Medical Services Week, Kids To Parks Day, and Police Week.

PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
(Public comment on any matter that is not on the agenda of the meeting and that is within the jurisdiction of the City Commission. Please
keep your remarks to a maximum of 3 minutes. When at the podium, state your name and address for the record.)

1. Miscellaneous reports and announcements.

NEIGHBORHOOD COUNCILS

2. Miscellaneous reports and announcements from Neighborhood Councils.

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

3. Appointment, Library Board.

4. Miscellaneous reports and announcements from Boards and Commissions.

CITY MANAGER

5. Miscellaneous reports and announcements from the City Manager.

CONSENT AGENDA
The Consent Agenda is made up of routine day-to-day items that require Commission action. Items may be pulled from the Consent Agenda
for separate discussion/vote by any Commissioner.

6. Minutes, May 1, 2018, Commission Meeting.

7. Minutes, May 1, 2018, Special Commission Meeting.

8. Total Expenditures of $2,206,603 for the period of April 14, 2018 through May 2, 2018,
to include claims over $5,000, in the amount of $1,954,908.

9. Contracts List

10. Approve Final Payment for the 3rd Avenue Southwest Lift Station #18 Force Main

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 1 of 106                                     



Replacement, in the amount of $11,234.92 to Phillips Construction, LLC., and $113.48
to the State Miscellaneous Tax Fund and authorize the City Manager to make the
payments.

11. Approve the bid award to supply asphaltic concrete material to Great Falls Sand &
Gravel, Inc., of Great Falls for $709,250.

Action:  Approve Consent Agenda as presented or remove items for separate discussion and/or vote

PUBLIC HEARINGS

OLD BUSINESS

12. 2018/2019 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funding Priorities.
Action: Approve or deny the proposed use of CDBG Funds, as submitted, for the Public
Improvements, Residential Rehab., and Public Services, for the 2018/2019 Community
Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) for inclusion in the 2018/2019 Annual Action
Plan. (Presented by Craig Raymond)

NEW BUSINESS

13. City of Great Falls Federal Grant Financial Policy.
Action: Approve or deny the City of Great Falls Federal Grant Financial Policy. (Presented
Melissa Kinzler)

ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS

14. Ordinance 3165, Amending OCCGF Section 9.3.040, Pertaining to Exceptions to The
Prohibition of Drinking or Displaying of Alcoholic Beverages in Public Places.
Action: Accept Ord. 3165 on first reading and set second reading for June 5, 2018. (Presented
by Joseph Cik)

15. Resolution 10235, Establishing a Policy Concerning Appointments to Boards and
Commissions and Repealing Resolution 10059.
Action: Adopt or deny Res. 10235. (Presented by Joseph Cik)

CITY COMMISSION

16. Miscellaneous reports and announcements from the City Commission.

17. Commission Initiatives.

ADJOURNMENT
(Please exit the chambers as quickly as possible. Chamber doors will be closed 5 minutes after adjournment of the meeting.) Commission
meetings are televised on cable channel 190 and streamed live at https://greatfallsmt.net. City Commission meetings are re-aired on cable
channel 190 the following Wednesday morning at 10 am, and the following Tuesday evening at 7 pm.

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 2 of 106                                     



Agenda # 3.
Commission Meeting Date: May 15, 2018

City of Great Falls
Commission Agenda Report

Item: Appointment, Library Board.

From: City Manager's Office

Initiated By: City Commission

Presented By: City Commission

Action Requested: Appoint one member to the Library Board.

Suggested Motion:
1.   Commissioner moves:            
 

“I move that the City Commission appoint _______________ to the remainder of a five-year term
through June 30, 2021, to the Library Board.”
 

2.  Mayor requests a second to the motion, Commission discussion, public comment, and calls for the
vote.

Staff Recommendation:
It is recommended that the City Commission appoint Samantha DeForest to the Library Board for the
remainder of a five-year term through June 30, 2021. 

Summary:
During the March 6, 2018 Commission Meeting, The Commission voted to remove Jane West from the
Library Board due to meeting attendance concerns.  Advertising for the opening was done through the
local media and also on the City’s website.  Four Applications were received.
 
Purpose
The Library Board is comprised of five members who are appointed by the City Commission.  The
Board oversees the Library policies and operations including book policies and service to the City,
County, and Pathfinder Federation of Libraries. 
 
Members serve for five-year terms, but no more than two full terms in succession, exclusive of time
served on any unexpired term.
 
Continuing members of this board are:

Dea Nowell

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 3 of 106                                     



Mitch Tropila 
Mary Ellen Kropp
Whitney Olson
 

Citizens interested in serving on the board are:
Samantha DeForest
Kelly Quick
Kathy Dunn
Anne Bulger

Concurrences:
The Library Board submitted a letter recommending that Samantha DeForest be appointed to the Board.

ATTACHMENTS:

Recommendation Letter
Application - DeForest
Application - Quick
Application - Dunn
Application - Bulger

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 4 of 106                                     



April 24, 2018 

Great Falls Mayor, 
Bob Kelly 

Great Falls City Commissioners, 
Bill Bronson 
Tracy Houck 
Mary Sheehy Moe 
Owen Robinson 

Dear Mayor and Commissioners, 

GREAT FALLS 
PUBLIC LIBRARY 

EXPLORE DISCOVER CONNECT 
See you at the Library! 

We would like to recommend that Samantha DeForest be appointed to serve on 
the Library Board for the remainder of a five-year term through June 30, 
2021 . 

Sincerely, 

Great Falls Public Library Board: 
Dea Nowell, Chair 

Mitch Tropila, Vice-Chair 
MaryEllen Kropp 
Whitney Olson 

301 2nd Avenue North Great Falls MT 59401-2593 www.greatfallslibrary.org 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 5 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 6 of 106                                     Attachment # 2



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 7 of 106                                     Attachment # 2



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 8 of 106                                     Attachment # 3



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 9 of 106                                     Attachment # 3



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 10 of 106                                     Attachment # 3



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 11 of 106                                     Attachment # 3



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 12 of 106                                     Attachment # 4



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 13 of 106                                     Attachment # 4



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 14 of 106                                     Attachment # 4



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 15 of 106                                     Attachment # 5



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 16 of 106                                     Attachment # 5



Agenda # 6.
Commission Meeting Date: May 15, 2018

City of Great Falls
Commission Agenda Report

Item: Minutes, May 1, 2018, Commission Meeting.

From: City Clerk's Office

Presented By: City Commission

ATTACHMENTS:

May 1, 2018 - Draft Commission Meeting Minutes

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 17 of 106                                     



JOURNAL OF COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS
May 1, 2018

Regular City Commission Meeting
Commission Chambers Room 206

CALL TO ORDER 7:00 P.M.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

City Commission members present: Bob Kelly, Bill Bronson, Mary Sheehy Moe, Owen Robinson
and Tracy Houck. Also present were City Manager Greg Doyon and Deputy City Manager Chuck
Anderson; Deputy City Clerk Darcy Dea; Public Works Director Jim Rearden; Planning and
Community Development Director Craig Raymond; City Attorney Sara Sexe; and, Police Chief
Dave Bowen.

AGENDA APPROVAL

City Manager Greg Doyon reported that there was a minor typo corrected in the April 17th
Commission Minutes.  The agenda was approved as presented.

CONFLICT DISCLOSURE/ EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS

None

PROCLAMATIONS

National Day of Prayer, Paint the Town in Hope Day & Leadership Great
Falls Splash for Cash Day.

PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS

1. Miscellaneous reports and announcements.

None

NEIGHBORHOOD COUNCILS

2. Miscellaneous reports and announcements from Neighborhood Councils.

None

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 18 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



3. Appointment/Reappointment to the Historic Preservation Advisory
Commission.

Commissioner Bronson moved, seconded by Commissioner Houck, that the City
Commission appoint Rich Ecke to fill a three-year term through April 30, 2021, and
reappoint Ellen Sievert for a three-year term through April 30, 2021, to the Historic
Preservation Advisory Commission.

Mayor Kelly announced that there is one more vacancy to fill for the Historic Preservation
Advisory Commission.
 
Mayor Kelly asked if there was any discussion amongst the Commissioners or comments from
the public.  Hearing none, Mayor Kelly called for the vote.
 
Motion carried 5-0

4. Reappointment, Advisory Commission on International Relationships.

Commissioner Moe moved, seconded by Commissioner Bronson, that the City
Commission reappoint Katheryn Craig to the Advisory Commission on International
Relationships for a three-year term through March 31, 2021.

Mayor Kelly asked if there was any discussion amongst the Commissioners or comments from
the public. 
 
Dr. Sandra Erickson, 2313 4th Avenue SW, expressed support with regard to reappointing
Katheryn Craig to the Advisory Commission on International Relationships.
 
There being no one further to address the Commission, Mayor Kelly called for the vote.
 
Motion carried 5-0

5. Miscellaneous reports and announcements from Boards and Commissions.

None

CITY MANAGER

6. Miscellaneous reports and announcements from the City Manager.

City Manager Greg Doyon reported that Planning and Community Development Certified
Permit Technician Joelle Marko has been promoted to Plans Examiner.  Manager Doyon further
reported that there is a need for additional Plans Examiners.
 
Manager Doyon reported that 10 Montana Fire Departments affiliated with the
Montana Firefighter Testing Consortium will be conducting a physical ability practice session,
which the City will be hosting in June.
 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 19 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



Manager Doyon expressed appreciation to Park and Recreation Director Steve Herrig, Deputy
Director Patty Rearden, and Staff for presenting what is being proposed at the Town Hall
meeting for the proposed Park Maintenance District on April 26.  Manager Doyon reported that
property owners within the City limits, but live outside the city, are eligible to vote on
the  proposed Park Maintenance District as long as they are a registered voter.  To receive a
ballot, take a copy of the property tax bill to the Cascade County Elections office, and fill out an
affidavit.
 
There will be performances at the Mansfield Center on November 20, 2018, and March 19,
2019, on the same evening as the City Commission meetings.

CONSENT AGENDA

7. Minutes, April 17, 2018, City Commission Meeting.

8. Total Expenditures of $2,705,979 for the period of March 31, 2018 through
April 18, 2018, to include claims over $5,000, in the amount of $2,455,358.

9. Contracts List.

10. Approve the purchase of one new 2019 Peterbilt 337 single axle cab & chassis
dump box truck for $114,767 from Montana Peterbilt of Missoula, through
NJPA (National Joint Powers Alliance.

Commissioner Moe moved, seconded by Commissioner Houck, that the City Commission
approve the Consent Agenda as presented.

Mayor Kelly asked if there was any discussion amongst the Commissioners or comments from
the public. 
 
John Hubbard, 615 7th Avenue South, expressed concern with regard to the proposed Park
Maintenance District, as well as an increase of taxes.
 
Mayor Kelly reminded Mr. Hubbard that the appropriate time to discuss those concerns was the
Petitions and Communications portion of the meeting.
 
There being no one further to address the Commission, Mayor Kelly called for the vote.
 
Motion Carried 5-0

PUBLIC HEARINGS

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 20 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



11. Res. 10233, A Resolution Declaring Certain Property Located at 2311 4th
Avenue Southwest, Lot 3B, Block 2, sunset S 179.75' of E/2 LT3, Cascade
county, Montana, A Nuisance, Order the Nuisance be Abated and
Authorize City Staff to Force Abatement if Necessary.

Planning and Community Development Director Craig Raymond reported this item is a request
to conduct a public hearing and to consider the adoption of Resolution 10233 which would
declare certain conditions located at 2311 4th Avenue SW a public nuisance.

The Official Code of the City of Great Falls (OCCGF) Title 8, Chapter 49 provides for a
process for dealing with nuisances which impact the public health and welfare. Nuisance is
defined in 8.49.010 as:

Anything which is injurious to health, or is indecent or offensive to the senses, or is an
obstruction to the free use of another's property, so as to interfere with the comfortable
enjoyment of life or property of another; or including but not limited to placement and/or
maintenance of any motor vehicle, motorcycle, trailer, camp trailer or mobile home on any
property in the City in violation of any zoning regulation or other City ordinance; or all any
residential structure (including all appurtenant structures) to remain vacant for more than one (1)
year where its condition constitutes a hazard or its appearance is a blight to the community or
where the property is maintained so as to obstruct the free passage or use, in the customary
manner, of any navigable lake, or river, bay, stream, canal, or basin, or any public park, square,
street, or highway, is defined to be a "nuisance."

Director Raymond further reported that the subject property has been the subject of verbal
complaints for some time, and that the City received a formal written complaint in December
2017, and an additional complaint and petition through Neighborhood Council #2 in January
2018.

This code enforcement case has been a cooperative effort with the Police, Fire, Engineering and
Planning and Community Development Departments.  Staff has spent considerable time on the
investigation and case management of this complaint.

This cooperative investigation produced evidence of multiple violations of the OCCGF including
an abundance of salvage items in the driveway and throughout the property, multiple licensed and
unlicensed vehicles in various states of disrepair and parked on surfaces not approved for vehicle
parking and storage. Additionally, the garage has been destroyed by fire and is unsafe to the
occupants of the property and the general public and is also an attractive nuisance.

Staff has worked with the owner, Mr. Michael Lewis, who was given generous amounts of time
to complete the clean-up and repair of the premises. While some minor progress appears to be
evident, it has not been sufficient to give staff any confidence that the clean-up will be completed
in any reasonable timeframe.    The property appears to meet the definition of a nuisance and
should be abated should the property owner fail to conduct the clean-up.

Mayor Kelly declared the public hearing open. 
 
Speaking in opposition to Resolution 10233 was:
 
Mike Lewis, 2311 4th Avenue SW, owner of the property, commented that recently efforts have

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 21 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



been made to clean up the property, however the weather conditions have stalled those efforts.
 
Speaking in support of Resolution 10233 were area neighbors: Sandra Erickson, 2313 4th
Avenue SW, Annette Terry, 2316 4th Avenue SW, Lisa Sims, 2310 3rd Avenue SW, Jim
Terry, 2316 4th Avenue SW, River Terry, 2329 4th Avenue SW, Patricia Hilbig, 2232 4th
Avenue SW, and Lynn Baker, 2313 4th Avenue SW expressing concerns  regarding increased
traffic and illegal activity, as well as the property being a public health and safety issue to children
and the community.  They urged the Commission to adopt Resolution 10233.
 
There being no one else to address the Commission, Mayor Kelly closed the public hearing and
asked the will of the Commission.

Commissioner Bronson moved, seconded by Commissioner Houck, that the City
Commission adopt Resolution 10233, declaring certain property located at 2311 4th
Avenue Southwest, Lot 3B, Block 2, Sunset S 179.75' of E/2 LT 3, Cascade County,
Montana, a Nuisance, order the Nuisance be abated and authorize City staff to force
abatement if necessary.

Mayor Kelly asked if there was any discussion amongst the Commissioners. 
 
Commissioner Bronson expressed support of Resolution 10233 based upon the evidence
compiled by City staff with regard to the health and safety concerns of the property, and not
based upon the allegations of criminal activity.
 
The Commission concurred with Commissioner Bronson's comments.
 
There being no further discussion, Mayor Kelly called for the vote.
 
Motion Carried 5-0

OLD BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

12. Downtown Revolving Loan Fund Agreement.

Planning and Community Development Director Craig Raymond reported that this item is a
request to consider the approval of an amendment to the agreement between the City and Great
Falls Development Authority (GFDA) originally approved in 2009, that provided for $300,000
for economic development, and GFDA authority to provide loans for certain activities as part of
a revolving loan program. The previous agreement was primarily intended to provide gap
financing for larger projects which also had match funds to contribute.

With the advent of the hugely successful pedlet program initiated by the Business Improvement
District (BID) last year, numerous community entities have been working to foster additional
incentives and expand the program. All of the individual entities which make up the Downtown
Development Partnership including the City have been working hard to make the downtown an
attractive place to work, play, shop and live. This agreement is just one example of the
coordinated effort. The only significant change to the agreement aside from formatting changes is
the expressed ability for GFDA to process micro-loans of $15,000 or less for these projects. 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 22 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



Commissioner Robinson moved, seconded by Commissioner Houck, that the City
Commission approve the amended Downtown Revolving Loan Fund Agreement.

Mayor Kelly asked if there was any discussion amongst the Commissioners or comments from
the public.  Hearing none, Mayor Kelly called for the vote. 
 
Motion Carried 5-0

13.  2018/2019 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funding
Priorities.

Planning and Community Development Director Craig Raymond reported that this agenda item
is an opportunity for staff to present to the Commission and the ommunity what the official
recommendations are for the coming Community Development Block Grant (CDBG/HOME)
funding cycle. Director Raymond further reviewed and discussed the attached PowerPoint.

Mayor Kelly asked if there were any comments from the public.
 
Julie Flesch, 41 Dick Road, commented that CDBG funding is critical to support the Indian
Family Health Clinic building.  She further commented that without the Indian Health Family
Clinic, Native American and non-native members would not have access to health care. 
 
There being no one further to address the Commission, Mayor Kelly asked if there was any
discussion amongst the Commissioners.
 
Commissioner Houck expressed support of the proposed changes to the Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) program recommended by Planning and Community
Development staff.
 
Commissioner Bronson received clarification that the survey is not statistically balanced but
rather to receive input from the community.
 
Commissioner Moe expressed concern that the 5% for Public Services would not be
enough.  Referring to year round applications, Commissioner Moe expressed concern that if
another priority comes up, there would not be any funds available to allocate. 
 
Director Raymond reported that 15% for Public Services is the high end cap allowed by the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).
 
Commissioner Robinson commented that there was a lot of work done with regard to the
proposed changes to the CDBG program, and that it is a remarkable option.  Commissioner
Robinson expressed appreciation with regard to the Public Improvements designation of 20%
being allocated to retrofit Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) access projects.
 
Mayor Kelly supports  moving forward with the funding priorities recommendations made by
staff.

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 23 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS

CITY COMMISSION

14. Miscellaneous reports and announcements from the City Commission.

Commissioner Bronson reported that the Montana School for the Deaf & Blind celebrated its
125th Anniversary on April 27th, and noted that it is a wonderful institution with special
and dedicated teachers.
 
Commissioner Bronson expressed appreciation to the Malmstrom Air Force Base Airmen who
volunteered at the MApril Clean up held on April 28.
 
Commissioner Houck thanked those who extended get well wishes to her while she was in
the hospital.  She further reported that she has another commitment and will be unable to attend
the May 15 Commission meeting.

15. Commission Initiatives.

Commissioner Moe reported that the national small business movement, Independent We Stand,
announced the quarter finalists, including Downtown Great Falls, in the 2018 "America's Main
Streets" contest.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Commission, Commissioner Moe moved,
seconded by Commissioner Houck, to adjourn the regular meeting of May 1, 2018, at 8:55 p.m.

Motion Carried 5-0

 
 

_________________________________
Mayor Bob Kelly

 
 

 _________________________________
City Clerk Lisa Kunz

 
Minutes Approved:

May 15, 2018

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 24 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



5/3/2018 

1 

Community Development 

Block Grant  

  

Funding Recommendations 

2018/2019 

1 

Federal Funds 

 CDBG and HOME programs are federal 

programs administered by HUD to help 

fund local community development 

 

 Goal: Assist low and moderate income 

(LMI) persons in their respective 

communities 

 

 

2 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 25 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



5/3/2018 

2 

Annual Allocation  

 Entitlement City- formula derived from 
population statistics 
◦ 2018/2019 CDBG Award: $776,621 

◦ 2018/2019 HOME Award: $285,831 

https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/comm_planni
ng/about/budget/budget18 

 

 Annual Action Plan 
◦ Outline’s Goals and Funding Priorities  

◦ Annual Action Plan is required by the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) as part of the five year Consolidated Plan. 

3 

FY18 Annual Action Plan Schedule 

4 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 26 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



5/3/2018 

3 

Community Assessment  

 Community Survey: 355 Results  

 Stakeholder Focus Group: 26 Participants 

 6 Neighborhood Council Meetings  

 Public Needs Hearing 

◦ Written Public Comments  

5 

Community Results 

 Strategy:  Focus on achieving a large goal or implementing 
larger projects 

 

1. Public Improvements 

 

2. Residential Housing Rehab   

1. Rental Housing Unit Rehab  

2. Single Family Home Rehab 

3. Housing Education and Counseling  

 

3. Public Services (Must be a new service or clear expansion 
of service, HUD funding cap: 15%) 

1. Homelessness Services  

2. Senior Services  

3. Alcohol and Drug Treatment   

 

 

 

6 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 27 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



5/3/2018 

4 

Staff Recommendation:  

Public Improvements 

 50% Public Improvement Grants 

◦ 20% of the total annual budget be dedicated 

to ADA Access Retrofit Projects.  

 

 This will provide funding to enhance 

public infrastructure such as sidewalks, 

curb ramps, City facility accessibility and 

playground equipment to enhance ADA 

access. 

 

 

7 

Staff Recommendation:  

Residential Housing Rehab 

 45% Residential Housing Rehab Loans   
 

 This will provide funding towards zero percent 
and/or low interest loans for property owners, to 
assist very low to moderate income individuals to 
bring properties up to code, and upgrade the 
city's housing stock to provide safe, affordable 
housing.  

 

 This percentage also includes grant funding 
towards Housing Education and Counseling, 
which the community identified as the third top 
priority for Housing Initiatives. 

 
8 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 28 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



5/3/2018 

5 

Staff Recommendation: 

Public Services 
 5% Public Service Grants 

◦ Homelessness Services  

◦ Senior Services  

◦ Alcohol and Drug Treatment 

 

 FY18 Approximately $66,600 

◦ FY17 Awarded $67,500 

 0 Projects were new and/or expanding services 

◦ FY16 Awarded $88,800 

 1 Project expanded services ($18,800) 

 

 9 

Staff Recommendation:  Timeliness 

 The City is required to have no more than 1.5 times 
of their annual allocation by May 2nd of every year. 
◦ Staff requests the ability to respond to this HUD 

requirement as needed, while remaining within the 
identified and approved priorities. 

 

 Staff to have limited authority to adjust the percent 
recommendations by zero to ten percent based on 
Timeliness need.  

 

 The City faced potential noncompliance with this 
requirement for the past two years and this approval 
will allow staff to be proactive in meeting the HUD 
Timeliness requirement. 

10 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 29 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



5/3/2018 

6 

Staff Recommendations: 

Estimated CDBG Project Budget 
 Unallocated CDBG funds from prior years 

($228,000) 

 

 FY18 CDBG estimated annual allocation ($776,600) 

 

 Unallocated program income within the Revolving 
Loan Fund ($569,000) 

 

 Minus the cost ($155,300) to administer the CDBG 
Program 

Total CDBG Project Budget: $1,418,300  

11 

HOME Investment Partnership Program 

 Estimated HOME Project Budget: $615,500 
◦ Projected FY18 Award: $285,800 

◦ Unallocated FY17 Award: $171,900 

◦ Unallocated FY16 Award: $168,100 

◦ Unallocated FY15 Award:   $18,200 

◦ Minus the cost ($28,500) to administer the HOME 
Program 

 

 HOME grant funding can be utilized towards: 
◦ Building (New Construction: Rental & Ownership 

Housing) 

◦ Acquisition (Property & Vacant Land) 

◦ Rehabilitation (Affordable housing for rent or 
homeownership) 

12 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 30 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



5/3/2018 

7 

FY18 Annual Projected Budget 

13 

Annual Action Plan- Next Steps 

 Annual Action Plan available for 30-Day Public Comment 
Period 

 May 3, 2018- June 2, 2018 

 

 City Commission vote on the funding priorities 

 May 15, 2018 

 

 City Commission vote on the Annual Action Plan 

 June 5, 2018 

 

 Annual Action Plan Submitted to HUD  

 By June 30, 2018  

 

 
14 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 31 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



5/3/2018 

8 

Moving Forward: 

Project Selection – New Process  
 Update Application to reflect allocation percentages (funding 

goals to be determined by City Commission) 

 

 Application available once FY18 funding released from HUD 

 

 Applications accepted year-round 

 

 Applications reviewed/scored 

◦ Internal Review – Grant Specialist, Loan Specialist, PCD Deputy 
Director, HR Development Coordinator, Fair Housing Specialist 

◦ Loans- Loan Review Board (GFDA/GFHA) 

 

  Highly scored projects will be chosen and a contract 
developed, which will ultimately be approved by the City 
Commission on the Contracts List/Consent Agenda  

 
15 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 32 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



Agenda # 7.
Commission Meeting Date: May 15, 2018

City of Great Falls
Commission Agenda Report

Item: Minutes, May 1, 2018, Special Commission Meeting

From: City Clerk's Office

Presented By: City Commission

ATTACHMENTS:

May 1, 2018 - - Draft Special Commission Meeting Minutes

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 33 of 106                                     



 

 

 

Special City Commission Meeting 
City Commission Special Minutes 

Gibson Room, Civic Center 
May 1, 2018 

 
 

1. Call to Order - 4:00 p.m. 
 

2. Roll Call 
 

City Commission members present: Bob Kelly, Bill Bronson, Tracy Houck, Owen 
Robinson, and Mary Sheehy Moe. 

 
Staff Present: City Manager Greg Doyon, Deputy City Manager Chuck Anderson, 
City Attorney Sara Sexe, Public Works Director Jim Rearden and City Engineer 
Dave Dobbs; and City Clerk Lisa Kunz. 

 

3. Public Comment 
 

None 
 

4. Introductions & Updates from Neighborhood Council #9 
 

Neighborhood Council 9 Chairperson Barney Danishefsky reported that the council 
is aware that officials from the Park and Recreation Department and Great 
Falls Public Schools are working towards a resolution with regard to Kranz 
park. He commented that Council 9's boundaries are: the northern boundary is 
Central Avenue, the southern boundary is 10th Avenue South, the eastern is 36th 
Street South, and the western is 10th Street South from 
10th Avenue South to 7th Avenue South, then east to 12th Street South, and then 
north to Central Avenue. 

 
Council 9 holds its regular meetings on the second Thursday of each month at 7:00 
p.m. at the First Church of the Nazarene, 1727 2nd Avenue South. 

 
 

5. Alliance for Youth - Nicole Zimmerman 
 

Alliance for Youth Program Coordinator Nicole Zimmerman and two high school 
seniors discussed the programs, services and support offered through Alliance for 
Youth. They discussed the new #LetsTalk app and its purpose to provide youth 
with useful and relatable information about mental health and suicide prevention all 
at their fingertips. The app also provides additional resources such as safe spaces 
for those who might be in a vulnerable state.  A short 2 minute and 45 second 
#LetsTalk video was played.  The goal is to decrease the stigma about mental 
health and make people aware there are options and opportunities to get help. 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 34 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



 

 

6. Update of City Wide Projects - Engineering Department - Jim 
Rearden and Dave Dobbs 

 

Public Works Director Jim Rearden and City Engineer Dave Dobbs provided an 
overview of approximately 100 capital improvement projects for calendar years 
2018 and 2019, as well as the Engineering Division work load in recent years for 
in-house construction projects and private development activity, as measured by 
inspection billing to developers. 

 

7. Discussion of Potential Upcoming Work Session Topics 
 

City Manager Greg Doyon reported that the May 15th work session will include an 
update from Neighborhood Council 1, Parking Advisory Commission's strategic 
planning report and needs, and the City Attorney's review of Title 8.  There were 
no requests to add topics to the work session topic list. 

 

8. City Manager's Annual Performance Evaluation 
 

Mayor Kelly stated that this portion of the meeting is to discuss the City Manager's 
annual performance evaluation.  He read the provisions of Mont. Code Ann. § 2-3- 
203. Manager Doyon asserted his right to privacy. Therefore, it was determined 
that the City Manager's individual privacy exceeds the merits of public disclosure. 
 
Commissioner Robinson moved, seconded by Commissioner Houck, 
that the City Commission move into executive session to discuss the City 
Manager’s performance evaluation. 
 
Mayor Kelly asked if there was any discussion amongst the Commission or 
comments from the public. Hearing none, Mayor Kelly called for the vote. 
 

Motion carried 5-0 
 

9. Commission Action on Performance Review 
 

At 5:17 p.m. the Commission, Manager Doyon and the City Clerk met in executive 
session in the City Manager's Office for the purpose of conducting the City 
Manager's annual performance evaluation. 

 
- - EXECUTIVE SESSION - - 

 
 
 

 
 

 
   

 
 
 
 
 

   

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 35 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
   

 
 

   
 
 

   
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 36 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

    
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

The executive session concluded at 6:40 p.m. 

 
The meeting reconvened into an open meeting in the Gibson Room. Mayor Kelly 
called the meeting back to order at 6:42 p.m. 

 
Mayor Kelly reported that the Commission conducted Manager Doyon's annual 
performance evaluation in closed session. Manager Doyon's contract was renewed 
in 2017 for a three-year term. Mayor Kelly summarized the Commission's 
favorable review of Manager Doyon, noting the Commission is happy with his 
performance, including communication, approachability, and ethics.  The 
Commission wants him to be more proactive in recruiting for key positions to make 
the transition easier, and wants him to be mindful of the cost of requiring certain 
staff at meetings, and determine if it's the best use of resources, if another staff 
member could attend. 

 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 37 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



 

 

 
Mayor Kelly asked if the Commission would entertain a motion to discuss 
compensation. He reviewed salaries of similarly situated positions. He suggested 
increasing Manager Doyon's salary by 3 percent for the second year of his 
contract, in addition to the proposed 3 percent cost of living adjustment. After 
a brief discussion, the Commission concurred, adding that it was 
important for the salary to be competitively appropriate and fair, and that the 
proposed increased be contingent on budget approval. 

 
Commissioner Bronson moved, seconded by Commissioner Robinson, that the 
City Commission approve a compensation increase in Manager Doyon’s salary 
by 3 percent for the second year of his contract, in addition to any cost of living 
adjustment, contingent on budget approval. 
 
Mayor Kelly asked if there was any further discussion amongst the Commissioners 
or comments from the public. Hearing none, Mayor Kelly called for the vote. 

 
Motion carried 5-0 

 

10. Adjourn 
 

There being no further business to come before the Commission, Mayor Kelly 
adjourned the special meeting of May 1, 2018, at 7:00 p.m. 

 
Motion carried 5-0 

 

 

    _________________________ 

    Mayor Bob Kelly 
 
 
    _________________________ 
    City Clerk Lisa Kunz 
 
    Minutes Approved: 
    May 15, 2018 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 38 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



Agenda # 8.
Commission Meeting Date: May 15, 2018

City of Great Falls
Commission Agenda Report

Item: Total Expenditures of $2,206,603 for the period of April 14, 2018 through May 2, 2018, to
include claims over $5,000, in the amount of $1,954,908.

From: Fiscal Services

Initiated By: City Commission

Presented By: Melissa Kinzler, Fiscal Services Director

ATTACHMENTS:

5000 Report

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 39 of 106                                     



Agenda # 8

Commission Meeting Date: May 15, 2018

CITY OF GREAT FALLS
COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT

ITEM: $5,000 Report

Invoices and Claims in Excess of $5,000

PRESENTED BY: Fiscal Services Director

ACTION REQUESTED:  Approval with Consent Agenda

LISTING OF ALL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECKS ISSUED AVAILABLE ONLINE AT 

www.greatfallsmt.net/fiscalservices/check-register-fund

TOTAL CHECKS ISSUED AND WIRE TRANSFERS MADE ARE NOTED BELOW WITH AN

ITEMIZED LISTING OF ALL TRANSACTIONS GREATER THAN $5000:

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECK RUNS FROM APRIL 19, 2018 - MAY 2, 2018 2,155,908.11

MUNICIPAL COURT ACCOUNT CHECK RUN FOR APRIL 14, 2018 - APRIL 30, 2018 50,695.05

TOTAL:  $ 2,206,603.16

GENERAL FUND

MUNICIPAL COURT

DIS TECHNOLOGIES SCANNED CITATIONS 2003 & 2005 30,612.15

CITY MANAGER

CTA ARCHITECTS ENGINEERS PHASE I CC EXTERIOR ENVELOPE REHAB 23,655.00

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STREET DISTRICT

ENNIS-FLINT INC PAINT DRUMS AND GLASS BEADS 13,075.00

DUSTBUSTERS INC MAG CHLORIDE 5,611.96

PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

ROBERT PECCIA AND ASSOCIATES  GREAT FALLS LONG RANGE 9,020.62

TRANSPORTATION PLAN

EDWARD FRIESEN SURETY REFUND 24,190.65

FEDERAL BLOCK GRANTS

GREAT FALLS HOUSING AUTHORITY CDBG GRANT AUSTIN HALL BOILERS AND 39,937.12

DOOR ENTRY SYSTEMS & FURNACES

PLAYSPACE DESIGN INC CDBG TIMELINESS FUNDS PARK & REC 25,531.00

PAVILION KRANZ PARK

YOUNG PARENTS EDUCATION CENTER CDBG CONTRACT DAY CARE 5,964.70

SCHOLARSHIPS

Page 1 of 3

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 40 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



ENTERPRISE FUNDS

WATER

ADVANCED ENGINEERING & OF 1699 WATER/SEWER COST OF 6,566.78

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICE INC SERVICE  (SPLIT AMONG FUNDS)

GUY TABACCO CONSTRUCTION OF 1733.1 PW UTIL/SHOP MEZZANIE 5,816.25

RETROFIT  (SPLIT AMONG FUNDS)

TRACTOR & EQUIPMENT CO GENIE SCISSOR LIFT 13,069.75

PANEL BUILT, INC TOOL ROOM MEZZANINE 9,765.00

ADVANCED ENGINEERING & OF 1625 H2O STORAGE TANK EVAL 14,636.45

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICE INC

ADVANCED ENGINEERING & OF 1710.0 WTP HIGH SERVICE PUMP #2 5,972.50

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICE INC REPLACEMENT STUDY

SEWER

ADVANCED ENGINEERING & OF 1699 WATER/SEWER COST OF 6,566.78

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICE INC SERVICE  (SPLIT AMONG FUNDS)

GUY TABACCO CONSTRUCTION OF 1733.1 PW UTIL/SHOP MEZZANIE 5,816.25

RETROFIT  (SPLIT AMONG FUNDS)

HDR ENGINEERING INC OF 1633 WWTP PERMIT UPGRADES 7,755.67

OUTRIGGER CONSULTANTS LLC OF 1722.2 LIFT STATION 8 REMOVAL 5,535.00

911 DISPATCH CENTER

CENTURYLINK DISPATCH MONTHLY LINE CHARGE 5,841.25

PARKING

STANDARD PARKING CORPORATION CONTRACT SERVICES FOR FEBRUARY 68,523.59

AND MARCH 2018

INTERNAL SERVICES FUND

HEALTH & BENEFITS

MONTANA MUNICIPAL INTERLOCAL EMPLOYEE INSURANCE PREMIUM 727,784.75

AUTHORITY MAY 2018

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

HIGH POINT NETWORKS LLC JUNIPER CORE ROUTERS 7,213.24

CENTRAL GARAGE

MOUNTAIN VIEW CO-OP FUEL-DIESEL 38,374.47

BROADWATER FORD 5-2018 FORD ESCAPES  AWD 104,437.30

PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION

TRACTOR & EQUIPMENT CO GENIE SCISSOR LIFT 12,878.00

CC FACILITY SERVICES

MASCO FLOOR SCRUBBER 5,600.00

Page 2 of 3

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 41 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



TRUST AND AGENCY

COURT TRUST MUNICIPAL COURT

CITY OF GREAT FALLS FINES & FORFEITURES COLLECTIONS 36,150.55

PAYROLL CLEARING 

STATE TREASURER MONTANA TAXES 46,451.00

ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS 8,154.25

FIREFIGHTER RETIREMENT FIREFIGHTER RETIREMENT EMPLOYEE & 51,769.31

EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

STATEWIDE POLICE RESERVE FUND POLICE RETIREMENT EMPLOYEE & 65,076.85

EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT 133,392.50

EMPLOYEE & EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

US BANK FEDERAL TAXES, FICA & MEDICARE 201,453.84

AFLAC EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS 10,824.25

LABORERS INTERNATIONAL UNION EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS 24,662.88

WESTERN CONF OF TEAMSTERS EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS 15,396.38

MONTANA OE - CI TRUST FUND EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS 24,870.53

NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS 13,760.14

UTILITY BILLS

NORTHWESTERN ENERGY TRANSMISSION CHARGES FOR FEB 2018 14,375.39

NORTHWESTERN ENERGY APRIL 2018 SLD CHARGES 78,819.27

CLAIMS OVER $5000 TOTAL: $ 1,954,908.37

Page 3 of 3

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 42 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



Agenda # 9.
Commission Meeting Date: May 15, 2018

City of Great Falls
Commission Agenda Report

Item: Contracts List

From: City Clerk's Office

Presented By: City Commission

ATTACHMENTS:

Contracts List

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 43 of 106                                     



 
 
 
 
 
CITY OF GREAT FALLS, MONTANA                                                                                                                 AGENDA:      9                                              
 
COMMUNICATION TO THE CITY COMMISSION      DATE: May 15, 2018 
 

ITEM:    CONTRACTS LIST 

Itemizing contracts not otherwise approved or ratified by City Commission Action 

(Listed contracts are available for inspection in the City Clerk’s Office.) 

 

PRESENTED BY:   Lisa Kunz, City Clerk 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  Ratification of Contracts through the Consent Agenda 

 

MAYOR’S SIGNATURE: ___________________________________________                                                                       
 

CONTRACTS LIST 
 

 
 

 
DEPARTMENT 

 
OTHER PARTY (PERSON 

OR ENTITY) 
 

PERIOD 
 

AMOUNT 
 

PURPOSE 

A 
Public Works/ 

Engineering 

Ed Boland Construction, Inc. 05/15/2018-  

12/31/2018 
$18,600 Agreement for construction of Public Works 

Fuel Tank Drilled Shaft Foundation 

installation project  OF 1455.9 
 

B 
Great Falls Police 

Department 

Contract Flooring Carpet One 05/15/2018- 

06/30/2018 
$2,285 Agreement for removal & replacement of 

carpet in the Police Department men’s locker 

room 

 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 44 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



C 

Public Works – 

Engineer 

Gregoire Construction 05/15/2018 – 

05/03/2019 
$22,047.50 Public Works Construction Agreement for 

removal and installation of reinforced 

concrete sidewalk, curb and gutter, handicap 

ramps, sod, and to move and reset irrigation to 

remediate hydrant line settlement.  Riverview 

Drive and 3rd Street NW Misc. Concrete 

Repairs project  OF 1730.4 
 

D 
Public Works Montana Department of 

Transportation (MDT) 

07/01/2017 – 

06/30/2018 

State shall reimburse 

City for maintenance 

work on State routes 

Traffic Control Maintenance Agreement 

defining maintenance responsibilities between 

the City and MDT  OF 1739 
 

E 

City Manager – 

Admin 

Children’s Museum of 

Montana 

Current N/A Memorandum of Understanding pertaining to  

surveillance equipment on City property 

leased by the Children’s Museum, located at 

22 Railroad Square (a/k/a Zellerbach Building 

– T20N R3E S11) 

 

 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 45 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



Agenda # 10.
Commission Meeting Date: May 15, 2018

City of Great Falls
Commission Agenda Report

Item: Construction Final Payment: 3rd Avenue Southwest Lift Station #18 Force Main Replacement,
Office File 1695.4.

From: Engineering Division

Initiated By: Public Works Department

Presented By: Jim Rearden, Public Works Director

Action Requested: Consider and Approve Final Pay Request.

Suggested Motion:
1.  Commissioner moves:
 

“I move the City Commission (approve/not approve) Final Payment for the 3rd Avenue Southwest
Lift Station #18 Force Main Replacement, in the amount of $11,234.92 to Phillips Construction,
LLC., and $113.48 to the State Miscellaneous Tax Fund and authorize the City Manager to make the
payments.”

 
2.  Mayor requests a second, discussion, public comment, and calls for the vote.

Staff Recommendation:
Approve final payment request.
 

Summary:
City staff has verified that Phillips Construction, LLC. has completed construction for the 3rd Avenue
Southwest Lift Station #18 Force Main Replacement project in accordance with the plans and contract
documents. Phillips has completed the punch list items and are requesting Final Payment. The project
was completed within the approved contract time of thirty (30) calendar days.

Background:
This project was initiated to prevent sanitary sewage overflows (SSOs) by replacing 450-feet of the
existing 10-inch DIP force main with 10-inch restrained joint C-900 PVC pipe. The purpose for doing
this is to continue to provide adequate and reliable sewer flow in order to protect the health and safety of
the citizens of Great Falls. 
 
The project started at Lift Station #18 on the corner of 18th Street Southwest and 3rd Avenue Southwest,

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 46 of 106                                     



and continued across the interstate to the corner of 16th Street Southwest and 3rd Avenue Southwest.
Two bids were received on September 6, 2017, with the bids ranging between of $113,498.00 and
$145,760.00.  Phillips Construction, LLC. submitted the low bid.
 
The final project cost is $98,053.06 which is $15,444.94 less than the amount originally awarded and
approved. The difference was due to the reduction in the amount of base course, A/C pavement  and
miscellaneous work required. This was accomplished by reducing excavation limits and making the
necessary field adjustments during construction to better fit site conditions.
 
City staff has verified that all work and punch list items were completed in accordance with the plans
and contract.  City staff recommends making the final payment.  The two year warranty period started at
the time of substantial completion which was November 9, 2017. 

Fiscal Impact:
City sewer funding was used to fund this project. 

Alternatives:
The City Commission could vote to deny final payment.

ATTACHMENTS:

Final Payment Documents

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 47 of 106                                     



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 48 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 49 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 50 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 51 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 52 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 53 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 54 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



Agenda # 11.
Commission Meeting Date: May 15, 2018

City of Great Falls
Commission Agenda Report

Item: Asphaltic Concrete Material

From: Kenny Jorgensen, Street Supervisor

Initiated By: Public Works Department

Presented By: Jim Rearden, Public Works Director

Action Requested: Award Bid

Suggested Motion:
1.   Commissioner moves:

 
“I move that the City Commission (approve/reject) the bid award to supply asphaltic concrete
material to Great Falls Sand & Gravel, Inc., of Great Falls for $709,250.”
 

2.   Mayor requests a second to the motion, Commission discussion, public comment, and calls for the
vote.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends that the City Commission approve the bid award to supply asphaltic concrete material
to Great Falls Sand & Gravel, Inc., of Great Falls for $709,250. 

Background:
Purpose
The asphaltic concrete material requested will be used by the Street Division to conduct street repair
and maintenance projects, including overlays and street opening patches.
           
Evaluation and Selection Process
The specifications were advertised two times in the Great Falls Tribune, mailed to two prospective
bidders and advertised on the City of Great Falls website.  The bids were opened on May 2, 2018, with
two bidders responding.
 
Along with price per ton numbers staff calculates a mileage factor:  calculations are figured using the
miles from the City Shop to the manufacturer source.  Great Falls Sand & Gravel is 3.3 miles and United
Materials is 7.3 miles.  Great Falls Sand & Gravel submitted the low bid.  They are also closer in miles
from the City Shop so the mileage factor calculations below will not be necessary.

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 55 of 106                                     



 
         Great Falls Sand & Gravel:  14,000 x $.21 per ton = $2,940.00 x 3.3 miles = $  9,720.00
         United Materials:                  14,000 x $.21 per ton = $2,940.00 x 7.3 miles = $21,462.00
 
Conclusion
The materials bid by Great Falls Sand & Gravel, Inc., meets specifications for the asphaltic concrete
material.            

Fiscal Impact:
The current bid price from Great Falls Sand & Gravel is $50.50 per ton for MPWSS Type B;
and $51.25 per ton for MPWSS Type C.  The contracted price for asphaltic concrete in FY 2017 was
$51.00 per ton for MPWSS Type B; and $51.75 per ton for MPWSS Type C.  The total bid price
difference from last year is a decrease of $5,500 or .77%.  Funding for this year's purchase of asphaltic
concrete is in the proposed FY 2019 Street Maintenance Budget.
 

Alternatives:
The City Commission could vote to reject the bids for asphaltic concrete material.

ATTACHMENTS:

Bid Tab: Asphaltic Concrete Material

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 56 of 106                                     



CITY OF GREAT FALLS  Project Number 

PO BOX 5021 ASPHALTIC CONCRETE MATERIAL Bids Taken at Civic Center 

GREAT FALLS MT  59403  Date:  May 2, 2018     

  Tabulated By:   Debbie Kimball 

            Lisa Kunz 

  Page   1 of   1 

 

NAME & ADDRESS 
OF BIDDER 

Bid 
Security 

Affidavit 
of Non-

Collusion 

 
MPWSS Type 
B Cost per Ton 

Total-11,000 
Tons 

 

MPWSS 
Type C Cost 

per Ton 
Total-3,000 

Tons 
 

 
 
 

Total Bid 
Site of 
Manuf. 
Source 

Miles to City 
Shop 

 
 
 

Great Falls Sand & 
Gravel, Inc. 

 
 

√ √ $50.50 
$555,500     

$51.25 
$153,750 $709,250 

 
GF Sand 
& Gravel 

 
3.3 miles 

United Materials of Great 
Falls, Inc. 

 
 
 

√ 
 
 
 

√ $53.25 
$585,750 

$56.50 
$169,500 $755,250 McIver 

Ranch Pit 7.3 miles 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

      

 

  
 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 57 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



Agenda # 12.
Commission Meeting Date: May 15, 2018

City of Great Falls
Commission Agenda Report

Item: 2018/2019 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funding Priorities.

From: Planning and Community Development Department

Initiated By: Maria Porter, Community Grant Specialist

Presented By: Craig Raymond, C.B.O., Director of Planning and Community Development

Action Requested: Accept proposed 2018/2019 CDBG Funding Priorities.

Suggested Motion:
1.     Commissioner moves:
 

“I move that the City Commission (accept/deny) the proposed use of CDBG Funds, as submitted, for
the Public Improvements, Residential Rehab., and Public Services, for the 2018/2019 Community
Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) for inclusion in the 2018/2019 Annual Action Plan."
 

2.   Mayor calls for a second to the motion, Commission discussion, public comment, and calls for the
vote.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends the City Commission set the 2018/2019 CDBG Funding Priorities as follows:
Public Improvements 50%
Residential Housing Rehab 45%
Public Services   5%
 
These percentages would be applied to the unallocated CDBG funds from prior years ($228,000), FY18
CDBG estimated annual allocation ($776,000), and unallocated program income within the Revolving
Loan Fund ($569,000); minus the cost ($155,000) to administer the programs approved in the Grant
Policies.
 
Staff recommends the City Commission approve staff to have limited authority to adjust the
percent allocations by zero to ten percent based on Timeliness need. The City is required to have no
more than 1.5 times of their annual allocation by May 2nd of every year; therefore, staff requests the
ability to respond to this HUD requirement as needed, while remaining within the identified and
approved priorities. The City faced potential noncompliance with this requirement for the past two years
and this approval will allow staff to be proactive in meeting the HUD Timeliness requirement.
 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 58 of 106                                     



Summary:
As part of the CDBG program, the City Commission is required to adopt funding priorities for the
2018/2019 CDBG funds to be received from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD).  The funding priorities recommended by Staff are completely driven by community input through
a community survey, stakeholder focus group, neighborhood council meetings, public hearing, and public
comment period. Staff intentionally provided multiple avenues of public engagement to ensure the
priority-setting process was community driven and inclusive. Staff's recommendation is to respectfully
utilize the community's chosen top three priorities, which will allow for strategic funding in areas of
need. These funding priorities will be used by Staff as a guideline for awards throughout the year.
 
The top need identified was Public Improvements. Staff recommends funding Public Improvements with
the largest allocation of 50% ($666,000). This will provide funding to enhance public infrastructure such
as sidewalks, curb ramps, City facility accessibility and playground equipment to enhance ADA access.
The Public Improvements designation will include that at minimum 20% ($266,000) of the total annual
budget  must be specifically allocated to retrofit ADA Access projects.  
 
The second identified need was Residential Housing Rehab. Staff recommends funding Residential
Housing Rehab with the second largest allocation of 45% ($599,000).  This will provide funding
towards low or no interest loans for property owners, to assist very low to moderate income individuals
to bring properties up to code, and upgrade the city's housing stock to provide safe, affordable housing.
This percentage also includes funding towards Housing Education and Counseling, which the community
identified as the third top priority for Housing Initiatives.
 
The third and final recommendation is to provide funding towards Public Services. Staff recommends
funding Public Services with the allocation set at 5% ($66,000).  This will provide funding towards
public service projects--specifically focused on addressing the Homelessness Services, Senior
Services, or Alcohol and Drug Treatment. The Public Service priorities were identified by the received
community feedback. All public service projects must be new and/or expanding services that benefit
low-to-moderate income persons.
 
In addition to the above funding recommendations, Staff also will be able to utilize HOME Investment
Partnership Program (HOME) funds towards new construction and homeownership.  HOME funds,
approximately $615,000, will be able to be granted to continue to further the City's mission to improve
and grow the affordable housing stock. HOME funding can be utilized towards building new
construction, buying, and/or rehabilitating affordable housing for rent or homeownership or providing
direct rental assistance to low-income people.
 
The funding allocations are strategically focused and identified by the community. One main perspective
that continuously arose during the community assessment was the recommendation that the City
strategically  allocate large percentages of funding to make a bigger impact. As seen above, Staff
recommends to utilize this recommendation.

Background:
CDBG and HOME programs are federal programs administered by HUD to help fund local community
development programs including affordable housing, anti-poverty, public service, and community
infrastructure projects.  The primary goal of these programs is to assist low and moderate income (LMI)
persons in their respective communities.  State and local governments receive funding from HUD based
on a formula derived from population statistics. 
 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 59 of 106                                     



Significant Impacts:  Funding priorities will lay the foundation for the Annual Action Plan required by
the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) as part of the five year Consolidated Plan. 
The   Citizen Participation attachment includes the Community Needs Assessment information from
which the priorities are chosen. The Needs Assessment included 355 results from a community survey, a
stakeholder focus group, and a Public Hearing held at the April 17, 2018, City Commission meeting. In
addition to the Community Needs Assessment, Staff also attended Neighborhood Council meetings and
tabled at multiple locations to conduct community outreach and gain insight. The public will also be
provided other opportunites to provide comment at future City Commission meetings and during a 30 day
public comment period prior to final adoption of the Annual Action Plan. Attached is the 2018-2019
Annual Action Plan Schedule.
 
As a result of audit findings presented to the City of Great Falls by HUD, City staff has been working
diligently with HUD and the community to identify ways in which the City can reshape the program to
satisfy HUD requirements and better serve the community in impactful ways. To date, City staff has
received support and approval for the program policy changes from HUD officials. If the City
Commission desires to make programmatic changes at this point, the City will be required to submit
those changes to HUD for approval putting this years allocation at risk due to the tight timeline in which
we must submit our Annual Action Plan for review and approval.
 
At the April 17, 2018, City Commission meeting, through the Grant Policies, the City Commission
approved to fund the administration of the CDBG and HOME Program and to continue to support Fair
Housing through a Fair Housing Specialist position. All estimated allocation amounts include the
deduction of these positions to administer the grant programs.
 
Conclusion
Funding priorities will lay the foundation for the Annual Action Plan required by HUD as part of the
Consolidated Plan.  Projects will be considered that fall into the guidelines established by these funding
priorities and meet national CDBG objectives, making them eligible for use of CDBG funds.

Fiscal Impact:
Meeting HUD requirements for receipt of CDBG funding will bring $776,621 to the City to benefit
low/moderate income citizens and families. This influx of Federal funding does significantly ease
pressure on the City’s general fund to provide similar services to low/moderate income residents of
Great Falls. 

ATTACHMENTS:

Citizen Participation
FY18 Annual Action Plan Schedule
FY18 Proposed Grant Budget

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 60 of 106                                     



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 61 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 62 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 63 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 64 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 65 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 66 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 67 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 68 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 69 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 70 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 71 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 72 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 73 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 74 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 75 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 76 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



                                      City of Great Falls 

                                         CDBG/HOME Annual Action Plan Schedule 

Commission Work Session to discuss Grant funding Priorities & Policies  November 21, 2017  

Public Needs Assessment- Neighborhood Councils (1/31, 2/19, 2/22, 3/1, 3/7, 

3/8), Community Survey, and Stakeholder Focus Group (3/5/18)  

January 26, 2018-  March 16,2018 

City Commission Work Session to review Community Data, City Commission 

Meeting to set date for Public Needs Hearing   

Tuesday April 3, 2018   

15 day comment period for proposed Citizen Participation Plan  March 30, 2018- April 16, 2018  

City Commission Meeting to vote on Grant Policies and Citizen Participation 

Plan, Public Needs Hearing   

Tuesday April 17, 2018   

City Commission Meeting to review Staff Recommendation on Goals to be 
included in Annual Action Plan 

Tuesday May 1, 2018 

30 day comment period for proposed 2018/2019 Annual Action Plan  May 3, 2018 – June 2, 2018 

City Commission Meeting to vote on Goals to be included in Annual Action Plan  Tuesday May 15, 2018 

City Commission Meeting to vote on Annual Action Plan Tuesday June 5, 2018 

ConPlan/Annual Action Plan submitted to HUD    By June 30, 2018 

 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 77 of 106                                     Attachment # 2



Debit Credit Balance

HOME Grant 644,200 644,200

CDBG Grant (FY17/FY18) 1,004,621 1,648,821

Revolving Loan Fund 569,633 2,218,454

Total Budget Amount $2,218,454

Administrative Costs (FY18 

Allocation: 20% CDBG/10% 

HOME)

183,907 2,034,547

Total Administrative Budget $183,907

Affordable Housing: HOME 

Grant 

615,616 1,418,931

Loan Specialist Program 65,000 1,353,931

Fair Housing Specialist 

Program

21,000 1,332,931

Public Improvements (50 %) 666,466 666,466

Residential Housing Rehab 

(45%)

599,819 66,647

Public Services (5%) 66,647 0

Total Project Budget $2,034,547

Impact on General Fund: None

FY 18 Grant Annual Projected Budget Proposal

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 78 of 106                                     Attachment # 3



Agenda # 13.
Commission Meeting Date: May 15, 2018

City of Great Falls
Commission Agenda Report

Item: City of Great Falls Federal Grant Financial Policy

From: Finance Department

Initiated By: Finance Department

Presented By: Melissa Kinzler, Finance Director

Action Requested: Adopt the City of Great Falls Federal Grant Financial Policy     

Suggested Motion:
1. Commissioner moves:
 

"I move that the City Commission (approve/deny) the City of Great Falls Federal Grant Financial
Policy."
 

 
2. Mayor requests a second to the motion, commission discussion, public comment, and calls for the
vote.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends the City Commission approve the City of Great Falls Federal Grant Financial Policy. 

Background:
Federal grant guidelines requires the City to have a Federal Funds Grant Financial Policy. The Finance
Department has written this policy at the suggestion of the City's external auditors, Anderson
ZurMuehlen, to document the procedures that have been in place and are currently followed by the City
of Great Falls.
 
The City Federal Grant Financial Policy is to ensure all Federal requirements for grants are being
implemented in full accordance with the Code of Federal Regulations, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principals, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. This City is responsible
for complying with all requirements of Federal Awards.

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 79 of 106                                     



ATTACHMENTS:

City of Great Falls Federal Grant Policy

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 80 of 106                                     



City of Great Falls 

Federal Grant 

Financial Policy 

 

 

 
  

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 81 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



1 

 

Introduction .............................................................................................................................................. 2 

Statutory and National Policy ................................................................................................................... 2 

Performance Measurement ...................................................................................................................... 2 

Financial Management ............................................................................................................................. 3 

Cost Principles ........................................................................................................................................... 4 

Internal Controls ....................................................................................................................................... 4 

Bonds ........................................................................................................................................................ 5 

Payment .................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Cost Sharing .............................................................................................................................................. 7 

Program Income ........................................................................................................................................ 9 

Revision of Budget and Programs Plans ................................................................................................. 11 

Period of Performance ............................................................................................................................ 13 

Purchasing ............................................................................................................................................... 13 

Labor ....................................................................................................................................................... 14 

Acronyms, Definitions and other Requirements .................................................................................... 15 

     

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 82 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



2 

 

IntroductionIntroductionIntroductionIntroduction    

The City Federal Grant Policy is to ensure all Federal requirements for grants are being implemented in 

full accordance with The Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principals, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards.  

Statutory and National PolicyStatutory and National PolicyStatutory and National PolicyStatutory and National Policy    

The City is responsible for complying with all requirements of Federal awards. This includes Federal 

Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA), which includes requirements on:  

1. Executive compensation, 

2. Use of Universal Identifier and System Award Identifier, and 

3. Reporting Subaward 

Performance MeasurementPerformance MeasurementPerformance MeasurementPerformance Measurement    

The City is responsible for ensuring all financial and performance measurements are reported using The 

Office of Budget and Management (OMB) standards for all Federal awards recipients, listed in 2 C.F.R. 

§200.300 et seq.  The awarding agency should provide recipients with clear performance goals, 

indicators, and milestones. Reporting on the Federal award must contain all of the following: 

1. General Federal Award Information 

a. Recipient name (which must match the registered Data Universal Numbering System 

(DUNS) name), 

b. DUNS number, 

c. Unique Federal Award Identification Number, 

d. Federal award date, 

e. Period of performance start and end dates, 

f. Amount of Federal funds obligated by this action, 

g. Total amount of Federal funds obligated,  

h. Total amount of Federal award, 

i. Budget approved by the Federal awarding agency, 

j. Total approved cost sharing or matching when applicable, 

k. Federal award project description, 

l. Name of Federal awarding agency and contact information for awarding official, 

m. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number and name, 

n. Identification of whether the award is research & development, and 

o. Indirect cost rate for Federal award. 

2. General Terms and Conditions Compliance 

a. Administrative requirements implemented, 

b. National policy requirements OMB §200.300, 

c. Federal award must include wording to incorporate the applicable set of general terms 

and conditions. The reference must be to a web site at which the Federal awarding 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 83 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



3 

 

agency maintains general terms and conditions, or the full text of the general terms and 

conditions to be provided by the Federal awarding agency, and 

d. Wherever the general terms and conditions are publicly available, the Federal awarding 

agency must maintain an archive of previous versions of the Federal terms and 

conditions, with effective dates for use by the City, auditors, or others.  

3. Federal awarding agency, program, or Federal award’s specific terms and conditions. The 

Federal awarding agency may include with each Federal award any terms and conditions 

necessary to communicate requirements that are in addition to the requirements outlined in the 

Federal awarding agency’s general terms and conditions. Whenever practicable, these specific 

terms and conditions also should be shared on a public Web site and in notices of funding 

opportunities in addition to being included in a Federal award.  

4. Federal award performance goals. The Federal awarding agency must include in the Federal 

award an indication of the timing and scope of expected performance by the recipient as related 

to the outcomes intended to be achieved by the program. In some instances, this may be limited 

to the requirement to submit technical performance reports. Where appropriate, the Federal 

award may include specific performance goals, indicators, milestones, or expected outcomes 

with an expected timeline for accomplishment. Reporting requirements must be clearly 

articulated such that, where appropriate, performance during the execution of the Federal 

award has a standard against which the recipient’s performance can be measured. The Federal 

awarding agency may include program-specific requirements, as applicable. These requirements 

should be aligned with agency strategic goals, strategic objectives or performance goals that are 

relevant to the program.  

5.  Any other information required by the Federal awarding agency. 

Financial ManagementFinancial ManagementFinancial ManagementFinancial Management    

1. The recipient must expend and account for the Federal award in accordance with State and 

City laws and procedures. In addition, the recipient's financial management systems, including 

records documenting compliance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 

conditions of the Federal award, must be sufficient to permit the preparation of reports 

required by general and program-specific terms and conditions; and the tracing of funds to a 

level of expenditures adequate to establish that such funds have been used according to the 

Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal award. 

2. The financial management system of each subrecipient entity must provide for the following: 

a. Identification, in its accounts, of all Federal awards received and expended and the 

Federal programs under which they were received. Federal program and Federal 

award identification must include, as applicable, the Catalog of Federal Domestic 

Assistance (CFDA) title and number, Federal award identification number and year, 

name of the Federal agency, and name of the pass-through entity, if any. 

b. Accurate, current, and complete disclosure of the financial results of each Federal 

award or program in accordance with the reporting requirements set forth in  OMB 

§200.327 Financial reporting and §200.328 Monitoring and reporting program 

performance. If a Federal awarding agency requires reporting on an accrual basis from 

a recipient that maintains its records on other than an accrual basis, the recipient will 

not be required to establish an accrual accounting system. This recipient may develop 

accrual data for its reports on the basis of an analysis of the documentation on hand. 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 84 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



4 

 

Similarly, a pass-through entity will not require a subrecipient to establish an accrual 

accounting system and must allow the subrecipient to develop accrual data for its 

reports on the basis of an analysis of the documentation on hand. 

c. Records that identify adequately the source and application of funds for Federally 

funded activities. These records must contain information pertaining to Federal 

awards, authorizations, obligations, unobligated balances, assets, expenditures, 

income and interest and be supported by source documentation. 

d. Effective control over, and accountability for, all funds, property, and other assets. The 

recipient must adequately safeguard all assets and assure that they are used solely for 

authorized purposes.  

e. Comparison of expenditures with budget amounts for each Federal award. 

f. Written procedures to implement the requirements of payment. 

g. Written procedures for determining the allow ability of costs in accordance with Cost 

Principles of this part and the terms and conditions of the Federal award. 

Cost PrinciplesCost PrinciplesCost PrinciplesCost Principles    

The application of these cost principles is based on the fundamental premises that: 

1. The City is responsible for the efficient and effective administration of the Federal award 

through the application of sound management practices.  

2. The City assumes responsibility for administering Federal funds in a manner consistent with 

underlying agreements, program objectives, and the terms and conditions of the Federal award.  

3. The City, in recognition of its own unique combination of staff facilities, and experience, has 

primary responsibility for employing whatever form of sound management techniques may be 

necessary in order to assure proper and efficient administration of the award.  

4. The application of the cost principles should require no significant changes in the internal 

accounting policies and practices of the recipient. However, the accounting practices of the 

recipient must be consistent with these cost principles and support accumulation of costs as 

required by the principles, and must provide for adequate documentation to support costs 

charged to the Federal award.  

5. In reviewing, negotiating, and approving cost allocation plans or indirect cost proposals, the 

agency for indirect costs should assure the recipient is applying the cost accounting principles on 

a consistent basis during their review and negotiation of in direct cost proposals.  

6. The City mat not earn or keep any profit resulting from Federal financial assistance, unless 

expressly by the terms of and conditions of the Federal award.  OMB §200.307 

Internal ControlsInternal ControlsInternal ControlsInternal Controls    

The City must ensure Federal award recipients create and follow internal control procedures, including 

that recipients: 

1. Establish and maintain effective internal control over the Federal award that provides 

reasonable assurance that the recipient is managing the Federal award in compliance with 

Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal award. These internal 

controls should be in compliance with guidance in “Standards for Internal Control in the Federal 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 85 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



5 

 

Government” issued by the Comptroller General of the United States or the “Internal Control 

Integrated Framework”, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 

Commission (COSO), as may be amended. 

2. Comply with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal awards. 

3. Evaluate and monitor the recipient’s compliance with statutes, regulations and the terms and 

conditions of Federal awards.  

4. Take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified including noncompliance 

identified in audit findings.  

5. Take reasonable measures to safeguard protected personally identifiable information and other 

information the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity designates as, or considers, 

sensitive consistent with applicable Federal, state, local, and tribal laws regarding privacy and 

obligations of confidentiality. 

6. The City will require all Federal award applicants to disclose to the City in writing, at least thirty days 

in advance of application, if the applicant, its employee, agent, consultant, officer, or family member, 

has a relationship with any City, other public or awarding agencies, or stands to benefit from City 

action regarding the application. Thereafter, the City will evaluate the issue for a conflict of interest, 

and notify the granting agency, if necessary, to request a determination on the existence of a conflict, 

or to request an exception.  

BondsBondsBondsBonds    

The Federal awarding agency may include a provision on bonding, insurance, or both, in the following 

circumstances:  

1. Where the Federal Government guarantees or insures the repayment of money borrowed by 

the recipient, the Federal awarding agency, at its discretion, may require adequate bonding and 

insurance if the bonding and insurance requirements of the City are not deemed adequate to 

protect the interest of the Federal Government. 

2. The Federal awarding agency may require adequate fidelity bond coverage where the City lacks 

sufficient coverage to protect the Federal Government's interest. 

3. Where bonds are required in the situations described above, the bonds must be obtained from 

companies holding certificates of authority as acceptable sureties, as prescribed in 31 CFR Part 

223, “Surety Companies Doing Business with the United States.” 

PaymentPaymentPaymentPayment    

Payment methods must minimize the time elapsing between the transfer of funds from the United 

States Treasury or the pass-through entity and the disbursement by the recipient, whether the payment 

is made by electronic funds transfer, or issuance or redemption of checks, warrants, or payment by 

other means. Except as noted elsewhere in this part, Federal agencies must require recipients to use 

only OMB-approved standard government wide information collection requests to request payment. 

The City sets forth the following guidelines listed below: 

1. The recipient must be paid in advance, provided it maintains or demonstrates the willingness to 

maintain both written procedures that minimize the time elapsing between the transfer of 

funds and disbursement by the recipient, and financial management systems that meet the 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 86 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



6 

 

standards for fund control and accountability as established in this part. Advance payments to 

the recipient must be limited to the minimum amounts needed and be timed to be in 

accordance with the actual, immediate cash requirements of the recipient in carrying out the 

purpose of the approved program or project. The timing and amount of advance payments must 

be as close as is administratively feasible to the actual disbursements by the recipient for direct 

program or project costs and the proportionate share of any allowable indirect costs. The 

recipient must make timely payment to contractors in accordance with the contract provisions.   

2. Whenever possible, advance payments must be consolidated to cover anticipated cash needs 

for all Federal awards made by the Federal awarding agency to the recipient.  

3. Advance payment mechanisms include, but are not limited to, Treasury check and electronic 

funds transfer and must comply with applicable guidance in 31 CFR part 208. 

4. Recipients must be authorized to submit requests for advance payments and reimbursements at 

least monthly when electronic fund transfers are not used, and as often as they like when 

electronic transfers are used, in accordance with the provisions of the Electronic Fund Transfer 

Act (15 U.S.C. 1693-1693r). 

5. Reimbursement is the preferred method when the requirements in paragraph (8) cannot be met 

or when the recipient requests payment by reimbursement. This method may be used on any 

Federal award for construction, or if the major portion of the construction project is 

accomplished through private market financing or Federal loans, and the Federal award 

constitutes a minor portion of the project. When the reimbursement method is used, the 

Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity must make payment within 30 calendar days 

after receipt of the billing, unless the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity 

reasonably believes the request to be improper. 

6.  If the recipient cannot meet the criteria for advance payments and the Federal awarding agency 

or pass-through entity has determined that reimbursement is not feasible because the non-

Federal entity lacks sufficient working capital, the Federal awarding agency or pass-through 

entity may provide cash on a working capital advance basis. Under this procedure, the Federal 

awarding agency or pass-through entity must advance cash payments to the recipient to cover 

its estimated disbursement needs for an initial period generally geared to the recipient's 

disbursing cycle. Thereafter, the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity must 

reimburse the recipient for its actual cash disbursements. Use of the working capital advance 

method of payment requires that the pass-through entity provide timely advance payments to 

any subrecipients in order to meet the subrecipient's actual cash disbursements. The working 

capital advance method of payment must not be used by the pass-through entity if the reason 

for using this method is the unwillingness or inability of the pass-through entity to provide 

timely advance payments to the subrecipient to meet the subrecipient's actual cash 

disbursements. 

7. Use of resources before requesting cash advance payments. To the extent available, the 

recipient must disburse funds available from program income (including repayments to a 

revolving fund), rebates, refunds, contract settlements, audit recoveries, and interest earned on 

such funds before requesting additional cash payments. 

8. Unless otherwise required by Federal statutes, payments for allowable costs by the recipient 

must not be withheld at any time during the period of performance unless the conditions of 

OMB §200.207 Specific conditions, Subpart D—Post Federal Award Requirements of this part, 

§200.338 Remedies for Noncompliance, or one or more of the following applies: 

a. The recipient has failed to comply with the project objectives, Federal statutes, 

regulations, or the terms and conditions of the Federal award. 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 87 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



7 

 

b. The recipient is delinquent in a debt to the United States as defined in OMB Guidance A-

129, “Policies for Federal Credit Programs and Non-Tax Receivables.” Under such 

conditions, the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity may, upon reasonable 

notice, inform the recipient that payments must not be made for obligations incurred 

after a specified date until the conditions are corrected or the indebtedness to the 

Federal Government is liquidated. 

c. A payment withheld for failure to comply with Federal award conditions, but without 

suspension of the Federal award, must be released to the recipient upon subsequent 

compliance. When a Federal award is suspended, payment adjustments will be made in 

accordance with OMB §200.342 Effects of suspension and termination. 

d.  A payment must not be made to the recipient for amounts that are withheld by the 

recipient from payment to contractors to assure satisfactory completion of work. A 

payment must be made when the recipient actually disburses the withheld funds to the 

contractors or to escrow accounts established to assure satisfactory completion of work. 

9.  Standards governing the use of banks and other institutions as depositories of advance 

payments under Federal awards are as follows: 

a. The Federal awarding agency and pass-through entity must not require separate 

depository accounts for funds provided to a non-Federal entity or establish any 

eligibility requirements for depositories for funds provided to the non-Federal entity. 

However, the recipient must be able to account for the receipt, obligation and 

expenditure of funds. 

b. Advance payments of Federal funds must be deposited and maintained in insured 

accounts whenever possible. 

10.  The recipient must maintain advance payments of Federal awards in interest-bearing accounts, 

unless one of the following apply: 

a. The recipient receives less than $120,000 in Federal awards per year. 

b. The best reasonably available interest-bearing account would not be expected to earn 

interest in excess of $500 per year on Federal cash balances. 

c. The depository would require an average or minimum balance so high that it would not 

be feasible within the expected Federal and non-Federal cash resources. 

d. A foreign government or banking system prohibits or precludes interest bearing 

accounts. 

11.  Interest earned amounts up to $500 per year may be retained by the recipient for 

administrative expense. Any additional interest earned on Federal advance payments deposited 

in interest-bearing accounts must be remitted annually to the Department of Health and Human 

Services Payment Management System (PMS) through an electronic medium using either 

Automated Clearing House (ACH) network or a Fedwire Funds Service payment. Remittances 

must include pertinent information of the payee and nature of payment in the memo area 

(often referred to as “addenda records” by Financial Institutions) as that will assist in the timely 

posting of interest earned on Federal funds. Pertinent details include the Payee Account 

Number (PAN) if the payment originated from PMS, or Agency information if the payment 

originated from ASAP, NSF or another Federal agency payment system.  

Cost SharingCost SharingCost SharingCost Sharing    

Under Federal research proposals, voluntary committed cost sharing is not expected. It cannot be used 

as a factor during the merit review of applications or proposals, but may be considered if it is both in 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 88 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



8 

 

accordance with Federal awarding agency regulations and specified in a notice of funding opportunity. 

Criteria for considering voluntary committed cost sharing and any other program policy factors that may 

be used to determine who may receive a Federal award must be explicitly described in the notice of 

funding opportunity, under these circumstances:  

1. For all Federal awards, any shared costs or matching funds and all contributions, including cash 

and third party in-kind contributions, must be accepted as part of the recipient 's cost sharing or 

matching when such contributions meet all of the following criteria: 

a. Are verifiable from the non-Federal entity's records, 

b. Are not included as contributions for any other Federal award, 

c. Are necessary and reasonable for accomplishment of project or program   objectives, 

d. Are allowable under OMB §200.400  Subpart E—Cost Principles are not paid by the 

Federal Government under another Federal award, except where the Federal statute 

authorizing a program specifically provides that Federal funds made available for such 

program can be applied to matching or cost sharing requirements of other Federal 

programs, 

e. Are provided for in the approved budget when required by the Federal awarding 

agency; and 

f. Conform to other provisions of this part, as applicable. 

2. Unrecovered indirect costs, including indirect costs on cost sharing or matching, may be 

included as part of cost sharing or matching only with the prior approval of the Federal awarding 

agency. Unrecovered indirect cost means the difference between the amount charged to the 

Federal award and the amount which could have been charged to the Federal award under the 

recipient’s approved negotiated indirect cost rate. 

3. Values for recipient contributions of services and property must be established in accordance 

with the cost principles in OMB §200.400 Subpart E—Cost Principles. If a Federal awarding 

agency authorizes the recipient to donate buildings or land for construction/facilities acquisition 

projects or long-term use, the value of the donated property for cost sharing or matching must 

be the lesser of: 

a. The value of the remaining life of the property recorded in the recipient 's accounting 

records at the time of donation, or 

b. The current fair market value. However, when there is sufficient justification, the 

Federal awarding agency may approve the use of the current fair market value of the 

donated property, even if it exceeds the value described in (a) above at the time of 

donation. 

4. Volunteer services furnished by third-party professional and technical personnel, consultants, 

and other skilled and unskilled labor may be counted as cost sharing or matching if the service is 

an integral and necessary part of an approved project or program. Rates for third-party 

volunteer services must be consistent with those paid for similar work by the recipient. In those 

instances in which the required skills are not found in the recipient, rates must be consistent 

with those paid for similar work in the labor market in which the recipient competes for the kind 

of services involved. In either case, paid fringe benefits that are reasonable, necessary, allocable, 

and otherwise allowable may be included in the valuation. 

5. When a third-party organization furnishes the services of an employee, these services must be 

valued at the employee's regular rate of pay plus an amount of fringe benefits that is 

reasonable, necessary, allocable, and otherwise allowable, and indirect costs at either the third-

party organization's approved Federally negotiated indirect cost rate or, a rate in accordance 

with OMB §200.414 Indirect (F&A) costs, paragraph (d), provided these services employ the 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 89 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



9 

 

same skill(s) for which the employee is normally paid. Where donated services are treated as 

indirect costs, indirect cost rates will separate the value of the donated services so that 

reimbursement for the donated services will not be made. 

6.  Donated property from third parties may include such items as equipment, office supplies, 

laboratory supplies, or workshop and classroom supplies. Value assessed to donated property 

included in the cost sharing or matching share must not exceed the fair market value of the 

property at the time of the donation. 

7. The method used for determining cost sharing or matching for third-party-donated equipment, 

buildings and land for which title passes to the recipient may differ according to the purpose of 

the Federal award, if either (a) or (b) below applies: 

a.  If the purpose of the Federal award is to assist the recipient in the acquisition of 

equipment, buildings or land, the aggregate value of the donated property may be 

claimed as cost sharing or matching. 

b. If the purpose of the Federal award is to support activities that require the use of 

equipment, buildings or land, normally only depreciation charges for equipment and 

buildings may be made. However, the fair market value of equipment or other capital 

assets and fair rental charges for land may be allowed, provided that the Federal 

awarding agency has approved the charges. See also OMB §200.420 Considerations for 

selected items of cost. 

8. The value of donated property must be determined in accordance with the usual accounting 

policies of the recipient, with the following qualifications: 

a. The value of donated land and buildings must not exceed its fair market value at the 

time of donation to the recipient as established by an independent appraiser and 

certified by a responsible official of the recipient as required by the Uniform Relocation 

Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended, (42 U.S.C. 

4601-4655) (Uniform Act) except as provided in the implementing regulations at 49 CFR 

part 24. 

b. The value of donated equipment must not exceed the fair market value of equipment of 

the same age and condition at the time of donation. 

c. The value of donated space must not exceed the fair rental value of comparable space 

as established by an independent appraisal of comparable space and facilities in a 

privately-owned building in the same locality. 

d. The value of loaned equipment must not exceed its fair rental value. 

9. For third-party in-kind contributions, the fair market value of goods and services must be 

documented and to the extent feasible supported by the same methods used internally by the 

recipient. 

Program IncomeProgram IncomeProgram IncomeProgram Income    

1. General. Recipient and subrecipient entities are encouraged to earn income to defray program 

costs where appropriate. 

2.  Cost of generating program income. If authorized by Federal regulations or the Federal award, 

costs incidental to the generation of program income may be deducted from gross income to 

determine program income, provided these costs have not been charged to the Federal award. 

3. Governmental revenues. Taxes, special assessments, levies, fines, and other such revenues 

raised by a recipient are not program income unless the revenues are specifically identified in 

the Federal award or Federal awarding agency regulations as program income. 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 90 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



10 

 

4. Property. Proceeds from the sale of real property, equipment, or supplies are not program 

income; such proceeds will be handled in accordance with the requirements of OMB Subpart 

D—Post Federal Award Requirements of this part, Property Standards §§200.311 Real property, 

200.313 Equipment, and 200.314 Supplies, or as specifically identified in Federal statutes, 

regulations, or the terms and conditions of the Federal award.  

5. Use of program income. If the Federal awarding agency does not specify in its regulations or the 

terms and conditions of the Federal award, or give prior approval for how program income is to 

be used, paragraph (5)(a) of this section must apply. For Federal awards made to Institutes of 

Higher Education (IHEs) and nonprofit research institutions, if the Federal awarding agency does 

not specify in its regulations or the terms and conditions of the Federal award how program 

income is to be used, paragraph (5)(b) of this section must apply. In specifying alternatives to 

paragraphs (5) (a) and (b) of this section, the Federal awarding agency may distinguish between 

income earned by the recipient and income earned by subrecipients and between the sources, 

kinds, or amounts of income. When the Federal awarding agency authorizes the approaches in 

paragraphs (5) (b) and (c) of this section, program income in excess of any amounts specified 

must also be deducted from expenditures. 

a. Deduction. Ordinarily program income must be deducted from total allowable costs to 

determine the net allowable costs. Program income must be used for current costs 

unless the Federal awarding agency authorizes otherwise. Program income that the 

recipient did not anticipate at the time of the Federal award must be used to reduce the 

Federal award and recipient contributions rather than to increase the funds committed 

to the project. 

b. Addition. With prior approval of the Federal awarding agency (except for IHEs and 

nonprofit research institutions, as described in paragraph (5) of this section) program 

income may be added to the Federal award by the Federal agency and the recipient. The 

program income must be used for the purposes and under the conditions of the Federal 

award. 

c. Cost sharing or matching. With prior approval of the Federal awarding agency, program 

income may be used to meet the cost sharing or matching requirement of the Federal 

award. The amount of the Federal award remains the same. 

6. Income after the period of performance. There are no Federal requirements governing the 

disposition of income earned after the end of the period of performance for the Federal award, 

unless the Federal awarding agency regulations or the terms and conditions of the Federal 

award provide otherwise. The Federal awarding agency may negotiate agreements with 

recipients regarding appropriate uses of income earned after the period of performance as part 

of the following grant closeout process: 

a. The recipient must submit, no later than 90 calendar days after the end of the period of 

performance, all financial, performance, and other reports as requires by or the terms 

and conditions of the Federal award. The Federal awarding agency or pass-through 

entity may approve extensions when requested by the recipient. 

b. Unless the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity authorizes an extension, a 

recipient must liquidate all obligations incurred under the Federal award not later than 

90 calendar days after the end date of the period of performance as specified in the 

terms and conditions of the Federal award.  

c. The Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity must make prompt payments to 

the recipient for allowable reimbursable costs under the Federal award being closed 

out.  

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 91 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



11 

 

d. The recipient must promptly refund any balances of unobligated cash that the Federal 

awarding agency or pass-through entity paid in advance or paid and that is not 

authorized to be retained by the recipient for use in other projects. See OMB Circular A–

129 and see § 200.345 Collection of amounts due for requirements regarding 

unreturned amounts that become delinquent debts. 

e. Consistent with the terms and conditions of the Federal award, the Federal awarding 

agency or pass-through entity must make a settlement for any upward or downward 

adjustments to the Federal share of costs after closeout reports are received.  

f. The recipient must account for any real and personal property acquired with Federal 

funds or received from the Federal government in accordance with OMB § 200.310 

Insurance coverage through §200.316 Property trust relationship and §200.329 

Reporting on real property.  

g. The Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity should complete all closeout 

actions for Federal awards no later than one year after receipt and acceptance of all 

required final reports. 

7. Unless the Federal statute, regulations, or terms and conditions for the Federal award provide 

otherwise, the recipient has no obligation to the Federal awarding agency with respect to 

program income earned from license fees and royalties for copyrighted material, patents, 

patent applications, trademarks, and inventions made under a Federal award to which 37 CFR 

part 401,“Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under 

Government Awards, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements” is applicable. [78 FR 78608, Dec. 

26, 2013, as amended at 79 FR 75884, Dec. 19, 2014] 

 

Revision of Budget and ProgrRevision of Budget and ProgrRevision of Budget and ProgrRevision of Budget and Programs Plansams Plansams Plansams Plans    

1. The approved budget for the Federal award summarizes the financial aspects of the project or 

program as approved during the Federal award process. It may include either the Federal and 

non-Federal share or only the Federal share, depending upon Federal awarding agency 

requirements. It must be related to performance for program evaluation purposes whenever 

appropriate. 

2.  Recipients are required to report deviations from budget or project scope or objective, and 

request prior approvals from Federal awarding agencies for budget and program plan revisions, 

in accordance with this section. 

3. For non-construction Federal awards, recipients must request prior approvals for revisions of 

awards from Federal awarding agencies for one or more of the following program or budget-

related reasons: 

a. Change in the scope or the objective of the project or program. 

b. Change in a key person specified in the application or the Federal award.  

c. The disengagement from the project for more than three months, or a 25 percent 

reduction in time devoted to the project, by the approved project director or principal 

investigator. 

d. The inclusion, unless waived by the Federal awarding agency, of costs that require prior 

approval in accordance with OMB §200.400 Subpart E—Cost Principles of this part or 45 

CFR part 75 Appendix IX, “Principles for Determining Costs Applicable to Research and 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 92 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



12 

 

Development under Awards and Contracts with Hospitals,” or 48 CFR part 31, “Contract 

Cost Principles and Procedures,” as applicable.  

e. The transfer of funds budgeted for participant support costs as defined in OMB §200.75 

Participant support costs to other categories of expense.  

f. Unless described in the application and funded in the approved Federal awards, the sub-

awarding, transferring or contracting out of any work under a Federal award, including 

fixed amount subawards as described in OMB §200.332 Fixed amount subawards. This 

provision does not apply to the acquisition of supplies, material, equipment or general 

support services. 

g. Changes in the approved cost-sharing or matching provided by the recipient. 

h. The need arises for additional Federal funds to complete the project. 

4.  No other prior approval requirements for specific items may be imposed unless an exception 

has been approved by OMB. See also OMB §§200.102 Exceptions and 200.407 Prior written 

approval. 

5.  Except for requirements listed in paragraph (3)(a) of this section, the Federal awarding agency is 

authorized, at its option, to waive prior written approvals required by paragraph (3) this section. 

Such waivers may include authorizing recipients to do any one or more of the following: 

a. Incur project costs 90 calendar days before the Federal awarding agency makes the 

Federal award. Expenses more than 90 calendar days pre-award require prior approval 

of the Federal awarding agency. All costs incurred before the Federal awarding agency 

makes the Federal award are at the recipient's risk (i.e., the Federal awarding agency is 

under no obligation to reimburse such costs if for any reason the recipient does not 

receive a Federal award or if the Federal award is less than anticipated and inadequate 

to cover such costs). See also OMB §200.458 Pre-award costs. 

b. Initiate a one-time extension of the period of performance by up to 12 months unless 

one or more of the conditions outlined in paragraphs (6)(b)(i) through (iii) of this section 

apply. For one-time extensions, the recipient must notify the Federal awarding agency in 

writing with the supporting reasons and revised period of performance at least 10 

calendar days before the end of the period of performance specified in the Federal 

award. This one-time extension may not be exercised merely for the purpose of using 

unobligated balances. Extensions require explicit prior Federal awarding agency 

approval when: 

i. The terms and conditions of the Federal award prohibit the extension. 

ii. The extension requires additional Federal funds. 

iii. The extension involves any change in the approved objectives or scope of the 

project. 

c. Carry forward unobligated balances to subsequent periods of performance. 

d. For Federal awards that support research, unless the Federal awarding agency provides 

otherwise in the Federal award or in the Federal awarding agency's regulations, the 

prior approval requirements described in paragraph (6) are automatically waived (i.e., 

recipients need not obtain such prior approvals) unless one of the conditions included in 

paragraph (6)(b) applies. 

e. The Federal awarding agency may, at its option, restrict the transfer of funds among 

direct cost categories or programs, functions and activities for Federal awards in which 

the Federal share of the project exceeds the Simplified Acquisition Threshold and the 

cumulative amount of such transfers exceeds or is expected to exceed 10 percent of the 

total budget as last approved by the Federal awarding agency. The Federal awarding 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 93 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



13 

 

agency cannot permit a transfer that would cause any Federal appropriation to be used 

for purposes other than those consistent with the appropriation. 

f. All other changes to non-construction budgets, except for the changes described in 

paragraph (c) of this section, do not require prior approval. 

g. For construction Federal awards, the recipient must request prior written approval 

promptly from the Federal awarding agency for budget revisions whenever paragraph 

(g)(i), (ii), or (iii) of this section applies. 

i. The revision results from changes in the scope or the objective of the project or 

program. 

ii. The need arises for additional Federal funds to complete the project. 

iii. A revision is desired which involves specific costs for which prior written 

approval requirements may be imposed consistent with applicable OMB cost 

principles listed in Subpart E—Cost Principles of this part. 

iv.  No other prior approval requirements for budget revisions may be imposed 

unless an exception has been approved by OMB. 

v. When a Federal awarding agency makes a Federal award that provides support 

for construction and non-construction work, the Federal awarding agency may 

require the recipient to obtain prior approval from the Federal awarding agency 

before making any fund or budget transfers between the two types of work 

supported. 

h. When requesting approval for budget revisions, the recipient must use the same format 

for budget information that was used in the application, unless the Federal awarding 

agency indicates a letter of request suffices. 

i. Within 30 calendar days from the date of receipt of the request for budget revisions, the 

Federal awarding agency will review the request and notify the recipient whether the 

budget revisions have been approved. If the revision is still under consideration at the 

end of 30 calendar days, the Federal awarding agency will inform the recipient in writing 

of the date when the recipient may expect the decision. [78 FR 78608, Dec. 26, 2013, as 

amended at 79 FR 75884, Dec. 19, 2014; 80 FR 54409, Sept. 10, 2015] 

Period of Period of Period of Period of PPPPerformanceerformanceerformanceerformance 

The Recipient may charge to the Federal award only allowable costs incurred during the period of 

performance (except as described in OMB §200.461 Publication and printing costs) and any costs 

incurred before the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity made the Federal award that were 

authorized by the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity. [78 FR 78608, Dec. 26, 2013, as 

amended at 79 FR 75884, Dec. 19, 2014] 

PPPPurchasingurchasingurchasingurchasing    

 

The City has a separate Purchasing Policy that is to be used for all of its grant purchases. The City 

Purchasing Policy is to ensure that the purchasing function meets the current and future needs of the 

City, provide an economical and efficient service and is considered a value-added partner in securing of 

goods and/or services for the City. The City shall make every effort to maximize any discounts offered by 

creditor and vendors. Purchase orders are required for any purchase over $5,000. Purchases between 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 94 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



14 

 

$5,000 and $80,000 (which is the bid limit specified in MCA §7-5-4302) must have three written quotes 

or be on the sole source form, which must be attached to the purchase order. Purchases in excess of 

$80,000 require a formal, statutory bid process. The City will follow state and federal law concerning 

purchase requirements.  

LaborLaborLaborLabor    

 

All federal grants of $2,000 or more are monitored to assure compliance with Davis-Bacon Act  

regulations set forth in 40 USCS §§ 3141 et seq. The Davis-Bacon and Related Acts, apply to contractors 

and subcontractors performing on federally funded or assisted contracts in excess of $2,000, for the 

construction, alteration, or repair of public buildings or public works. Davis-Bacon Act and Related Act 

contractors and subcontractors must pay their laborers and mechanics employed under the contract no 

less than the locally prevailing wages and fringe benefits for corresponding work on similar projects in 

the area. The Davis-Bacon Act directs the Department of Labor to determine such locally prevailing wage 

rates. The Davis-Bacon Act applies to contractors and subcontractors performing work on federal or 

District of Columbia contracts. The Davis-Bacon Act prevailing wage provisions apply to the “Related 

Acts,” under which federal agencies assist construction projects through grants, loans, loan guarantees, 

and insurance. Contracts in excess of $100,000, contractors and subcontractors must also, under the 

provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, as amended, pay laborers and 

mechanics, including guards and watchmen, at least one and one-half times their regular rate of pay for 

all hours worked over 40 in a workweek. The overtime provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act may 

also apply to DBA-covered contracts. The appropriate Davis-Bacon wage rate will be identified and 

implemented and certified payrolls will be submitted.  Each recipient department must account for City 

employee hours that are charged to federal grants.  

     

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 95 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



15 

 

Acronyms, Definitions and other RequirementsAcronyms, Definitions and other RequirementsAcronyms, Definitions and other RequirementsAcronyms, Definitions and other Requirements    

Asset – A tangible or in tangible item purchased with a value over $5,000 and has a life expectancy of 

more than one year.  

Audit Requirements for Federal Awards – A non-federal entity that expends $750,000 or more during 

the fiscal year in federal awards must have a single audit or program-specific audit conducted every 

year. 

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance – (CFDA) a government-wide listing of all the financial and non-

financial assistance programs administered by the federal government.   

Code of Federal Regulations – (CFR) The code of rules published by the Federal Register by the 

departments and agencies of the Federal Government. 

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission – (COSO) An initiative to combat 

corporate fraud. 

Cost Principals – Requires that assets be recorded at the cash amount at the time an asset is acquired.  

Data Universal Numbering System – (DUNS) A unique nine digit identification number. 

Funding Accountability and Transparency Act – FFATA, 31 USCS § 6101 et seq. 

 

Office of Budget and Management – OMB 

Recipient – The City, if it is the non-Federal entity receiving a Federal award, or a subrecipient. 

Subrecipient – The non-Federal entity to carry out part of a Federal award received by the City. 

Uniform Administrative Requirements – Aims to reduce the administrative burden on award recipients 

and, at the same time, guard against waste and misuse of Federal funds.  

 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 96 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



Agenda # 14.
Commission Meeting Date: May 15, 2018

City of Great Falls
Commission Agenda Report

Item: Ordinance 3165, "An Ordinance Amending OCCGF Section 9.3.040, Pertaining to Exceptions to
The Prohibition of Drinking or Displaying of Alcoholic Beverages in Public Places."

From: Legal Department

Initiated By: Legal Department

Presented By: Joseph Cik, Assistant City Attorney

Action Requested: Accept Ordinance 3165 on first reading and set second reading for June 5, 2018.

Suggested Motion:
1.     Commissioner moves:           
 

"I move that the City Commission (accept/not accept) Ordinance 3165 on first reading and set the
second reading for June 5, 2018."
 

2.     Mayor calls for a second to the motion, Commission discussion, public comment, and calls for the
vote.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends that the City Commission adopt Ordinance 3165. 

Background:
The Great Falls Business Improvement District has been recently utilizing pedlets for business
establishments.  Pedlets are sidewalk extensions that extend out into public parking spaces to allow for
continued pedestrian traffic, while allowing businesses to provide fenced adjacent outdoor seating on
public sidewalks.  The use of pedlets has proven to be a favorable addition to downtown. Businesses in
the downtown area are utilizing the pedlet system, including businesses that sell alcoholic beverages.  In
order for a business to utilize a pedlet for the purposes of providing dining services, the business
establishment is required to apply for and maintain a sidewalk café permit provided by Planning and
Community Development.
 
OCCGF §9.4.020 prohibits drinking or displaying alcoholic beverages in public places without City-
issued permits.  OCCGF §9.4.030 provides exceptions to said prohibition including certain areas of
Centene Park and the Civic Center. 
 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 97 of 106                                     



If the ordinance under consideration were adopted, business establishments that maintain valid sidewalk
café permits would be allowed to serve, and have customers consume, alcoholic beverages within the
visibly designated sidewalk café areas. To eliminate confusion and be consistent with current practice,
Staff recommends that the City Commission adopt Ordinance 3165.  
 
Ordinance 3165 Exhibit “A” illustrates the proposed additional language to OCCGF § 9.4.030 in bold. 
Ordinance 3165 Exhibit “B”, attached to this report, illustrates the changes in clean format.

Concurrences:
Great Falls Business Improvement District
Great Falls Planning and Community Development

ATTACHMENTS:

Ordinance 3165
Ord. 3165 Exhibit A
Ord. 3165 Exhibit B

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 98 of 106                                     



 

ORDINANCE 3165 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 9, CHAPTER 4, SECTION 030 OF 

THE OFFICIAL CODE OF THE CITY OF GREAT FALLS (OCCGF), 

PERTAINING TO EXCEPTIONS TO THE PROHIBITION OF DRINKING 

OR DISPLAYING OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES IN PUBLIC PLACES 

WHEREAS, OCCGF § 9.4.030 prohibits the drinking or display of alcoholic beverages in 

public places within the incorporated City limits; and 

WHEREAS, Business establishments that maintain a valid City sidewalk café permit serve 

alcoholic beverages for consumption on City public sidewalks, and 

WHEREAS, the City Commission wishes to cure this inconsistency within OCCGF Title 

9, Chapter 4. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF GREAT FALLS, MONTANA, that: 

Section 1. Title 9, Chapter 4, Section 030, of the OCCGF pertaining to exceptions to 

the prohibition of drinking or displaying of alcoholic beverages shall be 

amended as depicted by Exhibit “A”, attached hereto, adding any language 

which is bolded; and, 

 

Section 2: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect thirty (30) days after second 

reading and final adoption by the City Commission. 

 

APPROVED by the City Commission on first reading May 15, 2018. 

ADOPTED by the City Commission of the City of Great Falls, Montana on second reading 

June 5, 2018. 

______________________________ 

Bob Kelly, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________   (CITY SEAL) 

Lisa Kunz, City Clerk 

 

 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 99 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



APPROVED FOR LEGAL CONTENT: 

 

___________________________________ 

Sara R. Sexe, City Attorney 

 

 

State of Montana ) 

County of Cascade : ss 

City of Great Falls ) 

 

 I, Lisa Kunz, City Clerk of the City of Great Falls, Montana, do certify that I did post as 

required by law and as prescribed and directed by the Commission, Ordinance 3165 on the Great 

Falls Civic Center posting board and the Great Falls City website. 

 

 ____________________________________ 

 Lisa Kunz, City Clerk 

(CITY SEAL) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 100 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



Exhibit “A” 

 

Title 9 - PUBLIC PEACE, MORALS AND WELFARE 

 

Chapter 4 OFFENSES AGAINST PUBLIC PEACE 

 Great Falls, Montana, Code of Ordinances 

 

 

9.4.030   Exception—public places. 

A. Individuals, members of groups or organizations who wish to consume, sell or give away alcoholic 
beverages in public places as defined in 9.4.010 may do so provided they obtain a special event permit 
as specified in 9.4.040 or are otherwise excluded from that requirement.  

B. A fee to cover administrative costs for such permit shall be charged and set by Commission resolution 
and must be paid by the permittee no less than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the event.  

C. Organizers for special events held on any public places must clean up the property to a state at least 
as clean as when they arrived. Permit holder shall be solely responsible for the immediate and timely 
picking up and removal or proper disposal of garbage at the location where the permit is issued. (Ord. 
3158, 2017; Ord. 2647 (part), 1994).  

D. A special event may require closure of a parking lot open to the public or temporary closure of a street. 
For such an event, the event organizers must follow the provisions of 9.4.040.  

E. The Civic Center, Centene Stadium, Eagle Falls Golf Club, Anaconda Hills Golf Course, visibly 

designated areas immediately adjacent to business establishments maintaining a valid 

sidewalk café permit, and designated areas of the Montana Expo Park and the Multi-Sports 

Complex grounds shall be exempt from the prohibition of Section 9.4.020. 

(Ord. 3165, 2018; Ord. 3158, 2017; Ord. 2949, 2006; Ord. 2854, 2003; Ord. 2525 §2, 1988; Ord. 2453 

§1(part), 1987: Ord. 2399 §1, 1985: Ord. 2342 §2(part), 1983). 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 101 of 106                                     Attachment # 2



Exhibit “B” 

 

Title 9 - PUBLIC PEACE, MORALS AND WELFARE 

 

Chapter 4 OFFENSES AGAINST PUBLIC PEACE 

 Great Falls, Montana, Code of Ordinances 

 

 

9.4.030   Exception—public places. 

A. Individuals, members of groups or organizations who wish to consume, sell or give away alcoholic 
beverages in public places as defined in 9.4.010 may do so provided they obtain a special event permit 
as specified in 9.4.040 or are otherwise excluded from that requirement.  

B. A fee to cover administrative costs for such permit shall be charged and set by Commission resolution 
and must be paid by the permittee no less than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the event.  

C. Organizers for special events held on any public places must clean up the property to a state at least 
as clean as when they arrived. Permit holder shall be solely responsible for the immediate and timely 
picking up and removal or proper disposal of garbage at the location where the permit is issued. (Ord. 
3158, 2017; Ord. 2647 (part), 1994).  

D. A special event may require closure of a parking lot open to the public or temporary closure of a street. 
For such an event, the event organizers must follow the provisions of 9.4.040.  

E. The Civic Center, Centene Stadium, Eagle Falls Golf Club, Anaconda Hills Golf Course, visibly 

designated areas immediately adjacent to business establishments maintaining a valid sidewalk café 

permit, and designated areas of the Montana Expo Park and the Multi-Sports Complex grounds shall 

be exempt from the prohibition of Section 9.4.020. 

(Ord. 3165, 2018; Ord. 3158, 2017; Ord. 2949, 2006; Ord. 2854, 2003; Ord. 2525 §2, 1988; Ord. 2453 

§1(part), 1987: Ord. 2399 §1, 1985: Ord. 2342 §2(part), 1983). 

 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 102 of 106                                     Attachment # 3



Agenda # 15.
Commission Meeting Date: May 15, 2018

City of Great Falls
Commission Agenda Report

Item: Resolution 10235, "A Resolution Establishing a Policy Concerning Appointments to Boards and
Commissions and Repealing Resolution 10059."

From: Legal Department

Initiated By: Great Falls Tourism Business Improvement District

Presented By: Joseph Cik, Assistant City Attorney

Action Requested: Adopt Resolution 10235

Suggested Motion:
1.     Commissioner moves:
 

 "I move that the City Commission (adopt/not adopt) Resolution 10235."
 
2.     Mayor calls for a second to the motion, Commission discussion, public comment, and calls for the
vote.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends that the City Commission adopt Resolution 10235. 

Background:
Recently, the Great Falls Tourism Business Improvement District contacted members of the
Commission, as well as City Staff, regarding appointments of Trustees to Business Improvement District
Boards.  The District expressed concern over current appointment policy that makes it difficult to recruit
and retain Trustees to serve on the Board.  Many of the owners of District businesses within the City
limits reside out of city limits, limiting the number of individuals that would qualify for trustee positions.
 
In response to this concern, Staff has drafted Resolution 10235, which repeals and replaces Resolution
10059, pertaining to appointment policy.  Many of the policy provisions remain the same in the
resolution under consideration.  However, if Resolution 10235 is adopted, statutorily created Business
Improvement Districts would be allowed to make recommendations for appointment pursuant to District
adopted by-laws.
 
Current policy already allows special consideration in appointments for the Housing Authority Board,
Great Falls International Airport Authority, and Library Board appointments.  By allowing Business

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 103 of 106                                     



Improvement Districts the same consideration proposed by Resolution 10235, Districts will be able to
more effectively recruit and retain Trustees. Resolution 10235 also lays out the process for
reappointments. 
 
The City has been criticized over the process for reappointing without advertising for other citizen
interest.  In late 2016 Staff began advertising for all positions. During this period, no additional citizen
interest was generated with the additional advertising for any of the openings. Advertising is completed
through the City Website and Press Releases which are sent to the local media. No funding is budgeted
or used for advertising.   

ATTACHMENTS:

Resolution 10235

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 104 of 106                                     



RESOLUTION NO. 10235 

 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A POLICY CONCERNING 

APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS AND REPEALING 

RESOLUTION 10059. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Commission has the responsibility, both solely and in conjunction 

with other units of government, for making appointments to several Boards and Commissions; and 

 

WHEREAS, Resolution 10235 will apply to all Boards and Commissions unless federal 

or state law dictates otherwise; and 

 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the City Boards and Commissions is to provide opportunity 

for citizen participation in government and provide assistance and recommendations to the City 

Commission; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Commission is committed to involving as many citizens as possible 

in the decision-making process. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF GREAT FALLS, MONTANA, that: 

  

1. It is the policy of the City Commission that, unless otherwise specified by 

resolution, ordinance or provision herein, the maximum uninterrupted length of 

service on any single board or commission shall be two consecutive terms, 

exclusive of the time served on any unexpired term, for each person appointed by 

the City Commission. 

 

2. Members whose terms expire shall serve until a successor is appointed and 

qualified. 

 

3. Great Falls Housing Authority Tenant Members shall serve five consecutive two 

year terms, exclusive of the time served on any expired term. 

 

4. Business Improvement Districts may recommend appointments pursuant to any by-

laws adopted by the recommending district. 

 

5. In the case of a member eligible for and interested in reappointment, if the member 

is in good standing and the applicable board or commission recommends that the 

member be reappointed, his or her application shall be brought before the City 

Commission for consideration for reappointment without advertising for other 

citizen interest. 

 

6. Boards and commissions are encouraged to make recommendations to the City 

Commission regarding appointments to vacant positions on any Board or 

Commission, but the City Commission reserves the right to accept or reject those 

recommendations.  The City Commission also reserves the right to interview 

applicants to any board or commission. 

 

7. Citizens may not serve on two or more boards or commissions simultaneously, 

unless authorized to do so by the City Commission. 

 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 105 of 106                                     Attachment # 1



8. Unless otherwise provided by resolution or ordinance, all terms shall begin on the 

date of appointment. 

 

9. The City Manager shall approve an internal advertising and appointment procedure 

for member recruitment. 

  

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Commission of the City of Great Falls, Montana, 

this 15th day of May, 2018. 

 

 

        ______________________________ 

                            Bob Kelly, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Lisa Kunz, City Clerk 

 

 

 (SEAL OF CITY) 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED FOR LEGAL CONTENT: 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joseph Cik, Assistant City Attorney 

 

 

City Commission Meeting - May 15, 2018                                                                                                      Page 106 of 106                                     Attachment # 1


	Meeting Agenda
	Appointment, Library Board.
	Minutes, May 1, 2018, Commission Meeting.
	Minutes, May 1, 2018, Special Commission Meeting
	Total Expenditures of $2,206,603 for the period of April 14, 2018 through May 2, 2018, to include claims over $5,000, in the amount of $1,954,908.
	Contracts List
	Construction Final Payment: 3rd Avenue Southwest Lift Station #18 Force Main Replacement, Office File 1695.4.
	Asphaltic Concrete Material
	2018/2019 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funding Priorities.
	City of Great Falls Federal Grant Financial Policy
	Ordinance 3165, "An Ordinance Amending OCCGF Section 9.3.040, Pertaining to Exceptions to The Prohibition of Drinking or Displaying of Alcoholic Beverages in Public Places."
	Resolution 10235, "A Resolution Establishing a Policy Concerning Appointments to Boards and Commissions and Repealing Resolution 10059."

